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NOTICE 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Sixtieth (60
th

) Annual General Meeting of THE BARODA RAYON 
CORPORATION LIMITED (CIN - L99999GJ1958PLC000892) will be held on Tuesday, the 29

th
 of September, 

2020 at 09:00 a.m. at Patidar Bhavan, Kadodara, Surat-394327 (Gujarat) to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the financial year 
ended 31

st
 March, 2020 together with Directors’ and the Auditors’ Reports thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani (DIN – 07159576), who retires by rotation and 

being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment.    
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

3. To approve increase in the remuneration of Mr. Damodarbhai Patel (DIN-00056513), Managing 
Director of the company: 
 
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution, as 
Special Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the resolution passed by the members at the Annual 
General Meeting held on September 30, 2017 and pursuant to recommendation of Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee & Audit Committee and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 
198, 201 & other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including rules, notifications, 
any statutory modifications, amendments and re-enactments thereof for the time being in force and as 
may be enacted from time to time) read with Schedule V of the said act, and subject to the provisions 
of the Article of Association of the company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to 
the revision in the remuneration of  Mr. Damodarbhai Patel (DIN-00056513), Managing Director of the 
company on the following terms & conditions effective from 01st October, 2020 till his current term 
ending on 11th December, 2022, detailed as under –  
 
Particulars Amount 

Basic Salary ` 2,00,000 p.m. 
Perquisites & Allowances NIL 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the overall managerial remuneration payable to Mr. Damodarbhai 
Patel (DIN-00056513) shall be such amount as may be fixed by the Board from time to time on 
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee & Audit Committee but not exceeding Rs. 
One Crore Twenty lakhs at any point of time and that the terms and conditions of the aforesaid 
remuneration payable to the said Managing Director be varied/altered/revised within said overall limit, 
in such manner as may be required during his term as Managing Director.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any Financial Year during the tenure of the said Managing 
Director, the company has no profits or profits are inadequate, the aforesaid remuneration as may be 
approved by the Board of Directors of the company from time to time shall be paid as minimum 
remuneration. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director and/or the company secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things incidental thereto to give expedient to give 
effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
 

Notes: 
 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY 
THE COMPANY, AT ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE 
MEETING.  
 
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate 
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person 
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 
 

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Book of the company will remain closed from 
Wednesday, 23

rd
 September, 2020 to Tuesday, 29

th
 September, 2020 (both days inclusive) for the 

purpose of the Meeting. 
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3. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the 
company are requested to send their queries to the company at least seven days before the Meeting 
at its registered office, so that information required by the members may be available at the meeting. 
 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom 
they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding share in physical form can submit their 
PAN details to the Company / Registrars and Transfer Agents, M/s Sharex Dynamic (India) Private 
Limited. 
 

5. Members are requested to notify the change in their address to the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent of the company. 
 

6. Members attending the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report and the 
attendance slip attached thereto dully filled in and signed and hand over the same at the entrance of 
the hall. 
  

7. Pursuant to provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 members holding Shares in physical 
mode are advised to file a Nomination Form in respect of their Shareholding. Any Member wishing to 
avail this facility may submit the prescribed statutory form SH-13 to the Company’s Share transfer 
agent. 
 

8. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in their 
address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of 
address immediately to the Company / Registrars and Transfer Agent, M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) 
Pvt. Ltd. 

 
9. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representative to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Annual General Meeting. 
 

10. Details under Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Director 
seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the 
notice. The Director have furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment / re-appointment. 

11. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 
company electronically.   

12. Members may please note that no gifts, gift coupons, or cash in lieu of gifts will be distributed at 
meeting, in compliance with Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Secretarial 
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

13. All relevant documents and Registers referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company between 9.00 a.m. to 11.00 a.m. on all working 
days, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

14. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated that securities of listed 
companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form w.e.f. April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the 
Company/Sharex has stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of transfer of shares in physical 
form. Members holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in physical form are 
advised to avail of the facility of dematerialisation. 

15. As mandated by the SEBI, members holding shares in physical mode are required to submit 
their Permanent Account Number (PAN) and Bank Account details to the Company / RTA, if 
not registered with the Company. 

 
 

               Place: Surat                                                                           By order of the Board of Directors 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020                     

                                                                                                              
                                                                                                              Kunjal Desai  

                                                                   Company Secretary 
                                              ACS-40809 

 
Registered Office:- 
P O Fatehnagar, Udhna, 
Surat – 394 220 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

Item No. 3 -  
 
Mr. Damodarbhai Patel (DIN-00056513) was reappointed as Managing Director of the company by the Board 
at its meeting held on 01st September, 2017 for a period of 5 years i.e. from 12th December, 2017 till 11th 
December, 2022. The same was subsequently approved by the members at the AGM held on 30th September, 
2017. 
 
Further considering the contribution of Mr. Damodarbhai Patel and the progress made by the company under 
his leadership and guidance as per the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the 
Board at its meeting held on 31

st
 August, 2020 approved the revision in the remuneration of Mr. Damodarbhai 

Patel w.e.f. 01st October, 2020 till his remaining term as Managing Director on the terms and conditions 
enumerated in the resolution. 
 
Pursuant to Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the revised remuneration of Mr. 
Damodarbhai Patel as decided by the Board is required to be approved by the Members at their meeting due 
to inadequacy of profits. 
 
It is hereby confirmed that as the Company has defaulted in respect of payment of interest to secured creditors 
and have received prior approval from the secured creditors for revision in the remuneration of Managing 
Director. 
 
Pursuant to clause (iv) of Section II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 the following statement is given: 
 
 I.  General information: 

(1) Nature of Industry Textile industry 
(2)  Date or expected date of commencement of commercial 

production 
The company was incorporated in 
the year 1958. Since August 2008 
entire operational activities are 
stand still.  

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of 
activities as per project approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus 

N.A. 

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators Performance of F.Y. 2019-20: 
1) Turnover – NIL 
2) Profit after tax – Rs. 1804.73 
lakhs. 
3) EPS – Rs. 7.88 

(5) Foreign investments or collaborations, if any. N.A. 
II. Information about the appointee: 

(1) Background details He is a Commerce Graduate with 
wide experience in Textile and 
Real Estate sector. He has a wide 
experience of over 25 years and is 
engaged in the day to day affairs of 
the company. 

(2) Past remuneration NIL 
(3) Recognition or awards N.A. 
(4) Job profile and his suitability He has been with the company for 

more than 2 decades and have 
lead successful growth of the 
company. 

(5) Remuneration proposed As mentioned in the resolution 
stated above.  

(6) Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size 
of the company, profile of the position and person (in case of 
expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the 
country of his origin) 

Considering the responsibility 
shouldered by him of the enhanced 
business activities of the company, 
proposed remuneration is 
commensurate with the industry 
standards and Board level 
positions held in similar sized and 
similarly positioned business,  

(7) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or 
relationship with the managerial personnel, if any. 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel has 
provided unsecured loan to the 
company. He is related to Mrs. 
Vidhya Bhavani (DIN-07159576). 
 
 



 
III. Other information: 

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Entire operational activities of the 
company are standstill since 
August, 2008. 

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement N.A. 
(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable 

terms 
N.A. 

IV. Disclosures: 
 The information and disclosures of the remuneration package of the managerial personnel have been 

mentioned in the Annual Report in the Corporate Governance Report under the heading 
Remuneration in Rupees paid or payable to Directors for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

  
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder, 
consent of the members is being sought by way of Special Resolution. 
 
Mr. Damodarbhai Patel does not hold any equity shares of the company and is related to Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani 
(DIN – 07159576). The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.   
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mr. Damodarbhai Patel and Mrs. 
Vidhya Bhavani are considered to be interested or concerned in the above resolution. 

 
ANNEXURE TO ITEM NO. 2 OF THE NOTICE 

 
             Details of Director seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) 
Name of the Director Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani 
DIN 07159576 
Date of Birth 13/09/1987 
Date of Appointment/re-appointment 29/04/2015 
Terms and conditions of appointment / reappointment  Director liable to retire by rotation 
Areas of Specialization Construction and Textile Industry 
Qualifications & Expertise She has done Masters in Business Administration (MBA) and 

has more than 5 years of experience and is actively involved 
in the financial affairs of the company.  

Remuneration last drawn (incl. sitting fees, if any) NIL 
Remuneration proposed to be paid NIL 
No. of Shares Held in the Company NIL 
Directorship held in other  Companies - 
Chairman/member of the Committee of the Board of 
Directors of other Companies 

- 

Relationship with other Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel 

Daughter in law of Mr. Damodarbhai Patel – Managing 
Director. 

 
 
 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020 

By order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
Kunjal Desai 
Company Secretary 
ACS-40809 

 
Registered Office:- 
P O Fatehnagar, Udhna, 
Surat – 394 220 

 
ROUTE MAP TO THE VENUE OF AGM 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
 
To 
The Members of 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 60

th
 Annual Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the 

year ended 31
st
 March, 2020. The Financial results are shown as below. 

 
Financial Results      
                                                                                                                                                              (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

Income from Sales NIL NIL 
Other Income 10.56 6.11 
Total Income 10.56 6.11 

Less: Expenditure 224.78 569.32 
Profit/(Loss) before interest, depreciation and tax (214.22) (563.21) 

Less :  Depreciation NIL NIL 
            Interest 38.70 30.00 
            Earlier year tax NIL (6.97) 
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional/extraordinary item (252.92) (586.24) 
Less:   Exceptional/Extraordinary Item (2057.65) NIL 
Profit/(Loss) after Taxes 1804.73 (586.24) 
Other comprehensive income NIL 0.23 
Total comprehensive income 1804.73 (586.01) 

 
Overview of Company’s Financial Performance 
Your company’s other income of ` 10.56 lakhs consist of Income Tax Refund. Net profit for the year is                 
` 1804.73 lakhs as against loss of ` 586.24 lakhs in the previous year. The profit for the year is on account 
exceptional item ` 2057.65 lakhs. Total expenditure of your company has decreased to ` 224.78 lakhs as 
against ` 569.32 lakhs in previous year.    
 
Impact of COVID-19 pandemic 
The entire operational activities of the company are standstill since August 2008, due to labour & other 
regulatory issues. Till date there are no plants or units in operation. 
 
As a result there is no question of turnover or profitability or impact of COVID-19 on operation of units of the 
company.  The Company has not yet quantified any separate impact of COVID-19 at this stage. 
 
Dividend  
The Board of Directors of your company, have not proposed any dividend to be paid for the F.Y. 2019-20. 
 
Transfer to Reserves 
The Board of Directors of your company, has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year 
under review.  
 
Share Capital 
As at March 31, 2020, and as at the date of this report, the authorized share capital of the company is                     
` 150,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Crores only) divided into 13,00,00,000 eq. shares of ` 10/- 
each and 2,00,00,000 preference shares of `10/- each. The paid up capital of the company is ` 22,91,13,590/- 
(Rupees Twenty Two Crores Ninety One lakhs Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred and Ninety Only) divided into 
2,29,11,359 eq. shares of ` 10/- each.  
 
During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted 
stock options nor sweat equity.  
 
Change in nature of business 
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the company. 
 
Review of Operation 
During the year under review no production/manufacturing activities were carried on by the company. Hence, 
No information is provided regarding the performance of the company. Your company is seeking new avenues 
in order to restart the operations of your company. 
 
Material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company occurred between 
the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the report 
There was no material change and commitment that affected the financial position of the company between the 
end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of the report. 
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submit its 
responsibility Statement:— 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting 
standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same;  
 
b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
 
c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 
d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
 
e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and 
 
f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies. 
 
Deposits 
During the financial year 2019-20, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits within the meaning of 
section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014. 
 
However, deposits of ` 1.95 lakhs were outstanding as at 31

st
 March, 2020 as the matter is under litigation.  

 
Directors and key managerial personnel 
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Vidhya 
Bhavani (DIN- 07159576), retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, 
offers herself for re-appointment. 
 
The Board recommends her re-appointment for the consideration of the Members of the Company at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Brief profile of Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani has been given in the Notice convening 
the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Mr. Damodarbhai Patel (DIN-00056513), liable to retire by rotation was reappointed as director in the 59

th
 AGM 

held on 28/09/2019. Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel, Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel & Mr. Jayantilal Patel were re-appointed as 
independent director’s at the 59

th
 Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 28/09/2019 for a second term of five 

years.  
 
The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as per Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are as follows: 
 
(i) Mr. Damodarbhai Patel   – Chairman & Managing Director 
(ii) Mr. Kunjal Desai   – Company Secretary 
(iii) Mr. Jugal Kishore Jakhotia  – Chief Financial Officer  
 
Disclosure relating to Remuneration and Nomination Policy  
The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. This policy also lays down 
criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The details of this policy may be accessed from 
company’s website at www.brcl.in.   
 
Managerial Remuneration 
During the year under review, none of the directors were paid any remuneration. 
 
Independent Directors’ Meeting  
Independent Directors of the Company had met during the year under review, details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. 
 
Board Evaluation 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and 
Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Corporate Governance 
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requirements as prescribed by the SEBI Regulations.  
 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the 
basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, 
information and functioning, etc. 
 
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee 
members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of Committees, effectiveness of Committee 
meetings, etc. 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the Individual 
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and 
Committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his 
role. 
 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance of 
the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of 
Executive Director and Non-Executive Director. The same was discussed in the Board Meeting that followed 
the meeting of the Independent Directors, at which the performance of the Board, its Committees and 
Individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the 
entire board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 
 
Meetings 
The details of the number of Board and other Committee meetings of your Company are set out in the 
Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report. 
 
Declaration by Independent Directors 
The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. The Board relies on their declaration of independence. 
 
Committees of the Board 
There are currently three Committees of the Board, as follows: 
 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 
Details of all the Committees along with their charters, composition and meetings held during the year, are 
provided in the “Report on Corporate Governance”, a part of this Annual Report. 
 
Corporate Governance Report 
As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, a separate section on corporate governance practices followed by the Company, together 
with a certificate from the Company’s Auditors confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Report. 
 
Auditors: 
A. Statutory Auditors 
M/s. Kansariwala & Chevli, Chartered Accountants, Surat, (Firm Reg. No. 123689W), were appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the company in the 58

th
 AGM of the company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion 

of 58
th
 AGM till the conclusion of 63

rd
 AGM subject to ratification of their appointment by Members at every 

AGM. The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at 
every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. 
Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing 
AGM.  
 
The observations made by the Auditors are self explanatory and have also been explained in the notes forming 
part of the accounts, wherever required. The Auditors has not reported any matter of an offence of fraud to the 
Company required to be disclosed under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
B. Secretarial Auditor 
Mr. Manish Patel, Practicing Company Secretary, Surat was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2019-20, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
thereunder. The secretarial audit report for FY 2019-20 forms part of the Annual Report as “Annexure A” to 
the Board's report. There are secretarial Audit qualifications for the year under review. 
 
The Board has appointed Mr. Manish Patel, Practicing Company Secretary, as secretarial auditor of the 
Company for the financial year 2020-21. 
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Related Party Transactions 
During the financial year 2019-20, there were no transactions with related parties which qualify as material 
transactions under the Listing Regulations and that the provisions of section 188 of the Companies act, 2013 
are not attracted. Thus disclosure in form AOC-2 is not required. Further, there were no material related party 
transactions during the year under review with the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel. The 
details of this policy may be accessed from company’s website at www.brcl.in.    
 
Loans, Guarantees and Investments 
The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 
 
A). Details of investments made by the Company as on 31

st
 March, 2020 (including investments made in the 

previous years) (in equity shares): 
 
                                                                                                                                                    (` in lakhs) 

Name of Company Amount as at 31
st

 March, 2020 

*ICICI Bank Ltd. - 
Hindustan Oil Exploration Co. Ltd. 0.32 
Thai Baroda Industries Ltd. 574.85 
TAIB Capital Corporation Ltd. 24.50 
Total 599.67 

*Amount is negligible. 
 
B). There are no loans given by your Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Rules issued thereunder. 
 
C). There are no guarantees issued by your Company in accordance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder. 
 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as under- 
 
(A) Conservation of Energy: 
The production and manufacturing activities are not carried on by the Company and due to that no usage of 
energy. Hence, no steps are taken by the Company for conservation of energy. 
 
(B) Technology Absorption: 
The company has not imported any technology during the year and as such there is nothing to report. 
 
(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:                                    (` In Lakhs) 

 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL 
Foreign Exchange Outgoings NIL NIL 

 
Compliance Certificate 
A certificate from the Auditors of the company regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached to this 
report. 
 
Compliance with Secretarial Standards 
Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
as applicable to the Company, have been duly complied with except those mentioned in Secretarial Audit 
Report. 
 
Extract of Annual Return 
In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the 
prescribed format can be accessed from company’s website at www.brcl.in.    
 
Management’s view on Statutory Auditors Qualification: 
Your Company’s applications before the Hon’ble Gujarat High Court are pending and the management desire 
to act as per the directions given by the respective authorities. 
 
Management’s view on Secretarial Auditors Qualification: 
In respect of the Qualifications as stated in the Secretarial Audit Report, your management is of the view that –  
Due to financial crunches, the Annual Listing fees of the BSE is not paid. Also as there is mismatch in the paid 
up capital as per company and BSE promoters shares are not in demat form. However company is in process 
to comply the same. 
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Cash Flow Analysis 
The Cash Flow Statement for the year under reference in terms of Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism and formulated the Whistle Blower Policy (WB) to deal with 
instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the WB Policy are explained in the Corporate 
Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company www.brcl.in. No complain was received 
during the year. 
 
Disclosures as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013.  
As required by the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 
2013, the Company has formulated and implemented a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at the 
workplace with a mechanism of lodging complaints and the same is posted on the website of the company 
www.brcl.in. Since your company is having no operative activities, it has not received any complaint on sexual 
harassment during the financial year 2019-20. 
 
Disclosure on Maintenance of Cost Audit 
Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not required to maintain cost 
records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. Since there are no 
manufacturing activities since August’ 2008, the Company has not maintained the same.  
 
Risk Management 
A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, 
potential impact and risk mitigation process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the 
impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The mechanism works on the principles of 
probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, 
monitor and manage both business and non-business risks. 
 
Listing on stock exchange 
The Company’s shares are listed at the BSE Limited but trading is suspended due to penal reasons. The 
company has not paid the listing fees for F.Y. 2019-20. 
 
Particulars of Employees 
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 forms part of this Report as “Annexure – B”.  
 
Details on internal financial controls related to financial statements 
Your Company has adopted accounting policies which are in line with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 that continue to apply under Section 
133 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. These are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India.  
 
Significant/Material orders passed by the regulators 
During the year under review, no significant/material orders were passed by any regulator. 
 
General 
a) Your Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; and 
b) Your Company does not have any ESOP scheme for its employees/Directors. 
 
Appreciation    
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation towards all associates including Customers, 
Collaborators, Strategic Investors, Government Agencies, Financial Institutions, Bankers, Suppliers, 
Shareholders, Employees and other who have reposed their confidence in the company during the period 
under review. 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020 

By order of the Board of Directors 
 
 
Damodarbhai B Patel 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00056513 
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO BOARD’S REPORT 

 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
(CIN: L99999GJ1958PLC000892) 
P O Fatehnagar, Udhna, 
Surat – 394220, Gujarat. 
 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions of the 
applicable acts listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder. 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable as the Company has not issued any securities); 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable as the Company has not formulated any 
Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme);  

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
(Not applicable as the Company has not issued any debts securities which were listed);  

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not applicable as the 
Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent); 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 
applicable as the Company has not opted for delisting); and 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not 
applicable as the Company has not done any Buyback of Securities). 

 
(vi) The Company is not attracting any sector specific laws as per representations made by the Company.  

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) Secretarial Standards (with respect to Board and General Meetings) issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange read with SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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During the period under review, the Company has not complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. However, major non compliances are as under: 
 

i. During the year, the Company has not appointed an Internal Auditor as per requirement of Section 138 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. During the year, the Company has not provided E-voting Facility in 59th AGM to its Members and also 
not appointed Scrutinizer for scrutinizing the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner within the meaning of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
scrutinizers’ report was not placed along with Results on website of the Company. 

iii. The Company has not complied with Ind AS-19 relating to Employees Benefit (Company has not given 
any effect of gratuity liabilities as per actual valuation) which is more specially prescribed in 
Independent Auditors’ Report dated 30th June, 2020. 

iv. The Company has not complied with Reg. 10, Reg. 14, Reg. 31(2), Reg. 36(1), Reg. 39(3), Reg. 44(1), 
44(2), 44(3) and Reg. 48 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

v. The Company has not complied with various provisions of SS-1 of Board Meeting and SS-2 of General 
Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
I further report that  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
All decisions made at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have unanimous consent as recorded in the minutes 
of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
 
I further report that there are inadequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period, the Company has taken following specific action/decision having major 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc. referred 
to above. 
 
(i) The company entered into a wage settlement agreement with its employees on 27th October, 2003 under 

section 2(p) read with Rule 62 under the provisions of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. Under this 

agreement the Company has settled all past claims relating to wages, salaries, claims with regard to 

perquisite and any other amounts due to employees prior to December 2003 in full and final satisfaction. 

The payments under this settlement are spread over a period of 5 years from the recommencement of the 

operations. The agreement specifies the past liabilities relating to unpaid salary, provident fund E.S.I.C., 

Gratuities etc. Owing to financial crisis Company had made partial payment. Unfortunately, due to adverse 

financial position of the company, operations had discontinued since 2008. Thereafter union has filed the 

litigation with various claims against the company with Gujarat High Court. The HC, Gujarat has directed to 

resolve the dispute by appointing the arbitrator with their permission. The arbitration award was given as 

impugned award by the Arbitrator. Under provision of Section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, 

the said award Company is challenged in District Court, Surat. Thereafter the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat 

has given the controversial Judgment during the month of May 2015 and company has filed Letter Patents 

Appeal (LPA) challenging the above said judgment at High Court of Gujarat. LPA was admitted at High 

Court of Gujarat, hence Labour Union has approached to Supreme Court of India for settlement of issues. 

Supreme Court of India has given directives to the High Court of Gujarat to settle the dispute. The matter is 

pending at High Court of Gujarat.  

Simultaneously, the Company has referred the said matter with Hon’ble BIFR for making necessary 

modification in Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (MDRS).The said scheme was circulated on 13th 

October’ 2015. And hearing was fixed on 31st December 2015, thereafter due to non availability of bench 

member hearing was re schedule and started hearing on 29th April 2016, 06th June 2016 and 30th June 

2016. After the last hearing, company have received the SCN dated 14th July 2016, Further Company have 

approach before AAIFR and application was made against SCN before AAIFR and hearing was fixed on 

29th September 2016, and AAIFR directed to issue stay order and next hearing was fixed on 30th October 

2016, and due to non availability of bench member hearing could not held and next hearing was fixed on 

15th December 2016.     

In pursuant to Government Notification S.O. No 3568(E) dated 25.11.2016 and S.O. 3569(E) dated 
25.11.2016, BIFR has been wound up w.e.f. 01.12.2016 and all the pending cases would be transferred to 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on making an application within the time prescribed under section 
4(b) of Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003. No such application was made by 
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the company. Further in pursuant to Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (Removal of Difficulties) Order, 2017 
vide notification dated 24/05/2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs relating to amendment to the Sick 
Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003, provided  that any scheme sanctioned under 
sub-section (4) or any scheme under implementation under sub-section (12) of section 18 of the Sick 
Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 shall be deemed to be an approved resolution plan 
under sub-section (1) of section 31 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and the same shall be 
dealt with, in accordance with the provisions of Part II of the said Code. Company had written a letter to the 
Office of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India (IBBI) on 31.10.2017 and had also written on portal of 
IBBI on 28.10.2017 seeking clarification of implementation of the said order. Further IBBI had replied vide 
letter dated 28/9/2018 and the matter of the company was referred to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), 
than company had started various correspondence with MCA and final outcome was given by them on 
16/01/2020 against Reply of companys letter dated 08/01/2020 and they said that Ministry pertaining to 
removing difficulties regarding review or monitoring of schemes sanctioned under SICA and approach Hon. 
High Court for appropriate relief by way writ petition referring the judgement dated 25/10/2018 of Hon. 
Supreme court of India in the matter of Spartech Ceramics Limited. Company has neither booked the same 
as a liability nor has disclosed as contingent liability and no action taken by company in this matter. 

 
 
 
Date: 31/08/2020                       MANISH R. PATEL 
Place: Surat        Company Secretary in Practice 
         ACS No: 19885 
         COP No. : 9360 
                                                                                                                                         UDIN: A019885B000635533 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of 
this report. 

                
              Annexure A 

 
To, 
The Members, 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
(CIN: L99999GJ1958PLC000892) 
P O Fatehnagar, Udhna, 
Surat – 394220, Gujarat. 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test check 
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 
practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

7. I further, report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial Laws like Direct and Indirect 
Tax Laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review by the statutory 
financial audit and other designated professionals. 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: 31/08/2020                      MANISH R. PATEL 
Place: Surat        Company Secretary in Practice 
         ACS No: 19885 
         COP No. : 9360 
                                                                                                                                          UDIN: A019885B000635533 
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO BOARD’S REPORT 

 
1.  Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: 

 
i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the Employees of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 and 
ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year. 
                                                                                                                                                   (` in lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director/KMP and 
Designation 

Remuneration for 
the FY 2019-20 

Percentage 
Increase/ 

decrease in 
remuneration 

in the 
Financial 

Year 
2019-20 

Ratio of 
Remuneration 

of each 
director to the 

Median 
Remuneration 

of 
Employees 

1 Mr. Damodarbhai Patel – 
Chairman & Managing Director 

NIL NIL N.A. 

2 Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel – 
Independent Director 

NIL NIL N.A. 

3 Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel – 
Independent Direcor 

NIL NIL N.A. 

4 Mr. Jayantilal Patel – 
Independent Director 

NIL NIL N.A. 

5 Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani –  
Non Executive Director 

NIL NIL N.A. 

6 Mr. Kunjal Desai –  
Company Secretary 

6.00 50% N.A. 

7 Mr. Jugal Kishore Jakhotia – 
Chief Financial Officer 

6.00 N.A. N.A. 

 
2.  The median remuneration of employees of the company during the financial year was ` 6.00 lakhs. 

 
3.  In the F.Y. 2019-20, there was an increase of 99.5% in the median remuneration of the employees. 
 
4.  As on 31.03.2020 there are three employees on roll of the company. 

 
5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: The average increase granted to employees other than 
managerial personnel is NIL.  

 
6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The remuneration 

paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees is in line with the remuneration policy 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
There were no employees covered under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 
2014. 

 

 
                                                                                                    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
Damodarbhai Patel 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00056513 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT AS PER REGULATION 34(2) OF SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 
Overview of Economy & Industry Scenario 
 
Global Economy  
Although slowdown in the manufacturing sector and trade tensions between the US and China were among the 
many factors that softened the economic outlook for 2019, the year did begin on a firm footing. The projected 
global economic growth, albeit downgraded, was 2.9%. Despite the economic and financial headwinds, growth 
in developing Asia was projected to remain a robust 5.5% during 2019 (Asian Development Outlook, Update, 
September 2019). However, in 2019-20, the Indian economy grew by 4.2% against 6.1% expansion in 2018-19 
whereas China’s growth was 6.1% in 2019 vs. 6.7% in 2018. Growth among advanced economies was 
forecast to drop to 2% during the year although growth in Sub-Saharan Africa was projected to accelerate to 
3.1% (Source: World Economic Outlook, International Monetary Fund). However, due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the International Monetary Fund has projected a sharp contraction of the global economy to a status 
much worse than what resulted from the 2008-09 financial crisis. 
 
Indian Economy 
India continues to be one of the fastest growing emerging economies in the world. A slowdown in the 
manufacturing and construction sector has lately affected GDP growth – slightly below 5% in the current fiscal. 
An impending revival in demand, positive consumption pattern and rising disposable income, makes India the 
most sought after investment destinations. Already the fifth largest economy in the world, India is supposed to 
take its place among the world’s top three economic powers in the next 10-15 years. 
 
The pandemic has undoubtedly affected India, but with the right economic stimulus and the gradual opening up 
of the lockdown the situation can be expected to improve. Interstate movement of goods is gradually picking up 
and retail financial transactions are showing a healthy trend. 
 
Global Textile and Apparel Industry 
One of the largest providers of employment after agriculture, the global textile and apparel industry is dynamic 
and everevolving. It has undergone enormous changes over the years, witnessing multiple shifts in 
consumption and production patterns, as also significant changes in geographies and manufacturing, given its 
dependence on the availability of cheap labour. 
 
Textile and apparel trade is predicted to grow at a CAGR of 6.4% during the period 2020-29. Apparel trade is 
likely to grow at a CAGR of 5.5% and textiles at a CAGR of 7% during the period. Rising disposable income, 
population, and rapid urbanisation in the emerging economies such as India, China, and Mexico are believed 
to be the key drivers of this market growth. 
 
The US and EU countries are the major consumers of textiles and they dominate the apparel industry. But over 
the years, a major part of the industry has moved away from the developed world towards China, South and 
South- East Asia, because of the abundance of raw materials and cheap labour. But more interestingly, the 
emerging markets led by countries such as India, China, Russia and Brazil are becoming consumption 
markets. India and China, both of which have a strong textile manufacturing base, are emerging as both 
sourcing and consuming nations. 
 
Presently, China holds the largest share in textile and apparel global trade, aided by its vertically integrated 
supply chain from production of fibre to the weaving of fabric and garmenting. The textile industry in China has 
the capability to manufacture all categories of products and provides an entire ecosystem that offers complete 
service to brands and retailers. But increasing labour and energy costs are eroding China’s competitive 
advantage to some extent. It is seeing a slowdown in exports. The global apparel manufacturers are finding 
Bangladesh, Vietnam and India equally attractive destinations. 
 
Indian Textile Industry 
India’s textiles industry goes back several centuries and is among the oldest industries in the country. It 
accounts for 14% of the industry output and is one of the largest contributors to the economy, accounting for 
~2% of the GDP. 
 
After agriculture, it is the second largest generator of income, employing close to 40 million people, and 
contributing 10% to the country’s manufacturing, owing to its labour intensive nature. The industry is vertically 
integrated with almost all sub-sectors and is thus integral to the economy. India is the second largest producer 
and exporter of textiles after China and fourth largest producer and exporter of apparel after China, 
Bangladesh and Vietnam. The textiles and apparel industry constitutes ~11% of the total exports of the 
country. 
 
However, one factor affecting India’s textile trade is currency fluctuation that remains a challenge for the 
industry. Exports have been a core feature of India’s textile sector. Indian textiles and apparel exports were 
estimated at $35.5 billion in 2019 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 11% over the next decade to reach 
$100 billion by 2029. Exports of both man-made textile and readymade garments have seen a major boost. 
A major factor behind the robustness of India’s textile industry is its strong production base with a wide range 
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of fibres and yarns. India is among the top producers of jute and silk, and beyond its natural fibres such as 
cotton, jute, silk and wool; and synthetic, its manmade fibres/synthetics such as polyester yarn, viscose yarn, 
nylon yarn and acrylic have also created a niche for themselves in the market. 
 
Indian Apparel Industry 
The Indian apparel industry was estimated to be worth $62 Billion in 2019 and is projected to reach ~$129 
Billion in 2029 growing at CAGR of ~7.6% over 2019-29 period. The Indian apparel sector is one of the fastest 
growing in the world, backed as it is by a robust demand growth. The country’s apparel market is driven mainly 
by menswear, which commands a 42% share of the total market. Women’s wear holds a 37% share while kids’ 
wear account for 21% of the apparel market. The major challenges in the Indian apparel industry are 
increasing competition, sustained discounting that is expected to moderate margins and product obsolescence 
due to ever- evolving fashion trends. 
 
Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic on Textile & Apparel Industry: 
The Indian textile and apparel industry has been adversely impacted in the short to mid-term due to lockdown 
and lower consumer spends. The sector is reeling under liquidity and cost pressure as well due to the 
unprecedented damage caused by COVID-19. Taking into account India’s position as a preferred destination 
for sourcing textile and apparel products by leading brands worldwide, Indian garmenting sector is getting 
impacted with deferment and cancellation of orders.  
 
The entire operational activities of the company are standstill since August 2008, due to labour & other 
regulatory issues. Till date there are no plants or units in operation. 
 
As a result there is no question of turnover or profitability or impact of COVID-19 on operation of units of the 
company.  The Company has not yet quantified any separate impact of COVID-19 at this stage. 
 
Opportunities, Threats and Challenges 
 
Opportunities 
 

� The company has inherent strength due to its prime location. 
 

� Changes in economic legislations and rationalization of the tax structure and duty structure such as VAT, 
custom duty etc. 
 

� VFY is emerging as a fiber with new applications. The general economic well being has resulted in the 
switch back to the use of this fiber for sarees and furnishing fabrics. 
 

� More competitive strength due to the availability of captive power plant. 
 
� Huge infrastructure facility to meet the current and future demand. 

 
� ‘Make in India’/Atmanirbhar Yojana campaign is a testimony to the huge growth potential in the industry, 

both in terms of infrastructure and skill improvement. 
 
 

Threats 
 
 

� The goodwill of the company is decreased due to legal proceedings and labor disputes which are still 
going on. 

 
� The Company is experiencing pressure on restarting its operational activities due to the cases pending in 

the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat. Threat from PFY due to its lower price has been a factor that has been 
having a cyclical impact in the market. 
 

� The Company perceives threat from imports and consequent pressure on domestic prices, apart from the 
increase in cost of raw materials and other inputs. 
 

� Rising input costs (wages, power and interest cost), restrictive labour laws and intensified competition from 
other low cost countries like China. 

 
 
Risk & Concerns 
 
The major risk is due to the globalization of the economy which could result in cheaper goods being dumped by 
China. Thus anti dumping duty is an important factor which has a major bearing on the perceived risk. The risk 
in terms of maintenance has been substantially addressed during the course of this year. The risk now shifts to 
availability of skilled personnel as the industry is generally facing shortage of skilled manpower. 
 
Your company’s entire operational activities are stand still since August 2008. 
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Discussion of the Financial Performance with respect to operational performance 
 
The financial performance of the company is not so good during the year under review as there is no 
production activities carried on by the company and due to that there is no income from operations generated 
by the company. The operations of the company are totally stopped and which also affect the financial 
performance of the company. 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Key Financial Ratios 2019-20 2018-19 Variance 
% 

Detailed comments 

1 Debtors Turnover - - - N.A. (refer note below) 
2 Inventory Turnover - - - N.A. (refer note below) 
3 Interest Coverage Ratio - - - N.A. (refer note below) 
4 Current Ratio 0.15 0.13 15.38 The debt has decreased on 

account of decrease in liability of 
interest and penalty waiver under 
Samadhan Yojna, 2019 & Sabka 
Vishwas Scheme, 2019.   

5 Debt Equity Ratio 13.86 14.65 5.39 The debt has decreased on 
account of decrease in liability of 
interest and penalty waiver under 
Samadhan Yojna, 2019 & Sabka 
Vishwas Scheme, 2019.   

6 Operating Profit Margin (%) - - - N.A. (refer note below) 
7 Net Profit Margin (%)   - - - N.A. (refer note below) 
8 Return on Net worth - - - The networth is eroded as entire 

operational activities of the 
company are standstill and with 
increase in expenses with no 
revenue.  

Note – As the entire operational activities of the company is standstill since August 2008, the ratios are N.A. 
 
 

 
                                                                                                        
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
Place: Surat 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
Damodarbhai Patel 
Chairman & Managing Director 
DIN: 00056513 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2020, in 
terms of Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulation”).  
 
1.  COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

The Corporate Governance philosophy encompasses regulatory and legal requirements, such as the terms 
of listing agreements with stock exchanges which aims at a high level of business ethics, effective 
supervision and enhancement of value for all stakeholders. 

 
The philosophy on Corporate Governance is an important tool for shareholder protection and maximization 
of their long term values. The cardinal principles such as independence, accountability, responsibility, 
transparency, fair and timely disclosures, credibility, sustainability etc. serve as the means for implementing 
the philosophy of Corporate Governance in letter and spirit.  
 

2.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

2.1  Composition of the Board of Directors 
As on March 31, 2020, there are 5 members on the Board which comprises of Executive & Non 
executive Directors consisting Managing Director as Executive Director. The Independent Directors 
satisfy the criteria of independence specified in the Act and as laid down under Regulation 16 (1) (b) 
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. They also meet the criteria for their appointment formulated 
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) as approved by the Board. 
 
Subject to overall superintendent and control of the Board, the day to day management of the 
company is vested with Mr. Damodarbhai B. Patel, Managing Director of the company, who is 
supported by a Management team. 
 

             Composition and category of Directors 
Sr. No. Category Name of Directors 

1. Promoter Directors NIL 

2. Executive Directors - ED Mr. Damodarbhai B. Patel 
Chairman & Managing Director 

3. Non-Executive Independent Directors -  
NED (I) 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel 
Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. Patel 
Mr. Jayantilal D. Patel 

4. Non-Executive Director – NED Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani 
  

2.2  Board Meetings 
A. The company had 5(Five) Board Meetings during the financial year 2019-20 on 30.05.2019, 

13.08.2019, 14.11.2019, 10.02.2020, 18.03.2020. The maximum gap between any two 
consecutive meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days, as stipulated under Section 
173(1) of the Act, and Regulation 17(2) of the Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standards 
issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

B. Directors’ attendance record at Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting, their other 
Directorships and Committee Memberships. 
 

Names Category 
Attendance at 

No. of other 
Directorship 
held in other 

Company 

Committee 
Membership held in 

other Company. 

Sharehold-
ings in the 
Company 

Board 
Meetings 

AGM 
(28.09.2019) 

As a 
Member 

As a 
Chairman 

No. of 
Shares 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel ED 5/5 Yes 1 - - - 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel  NED (I) 4/5 Yes 1 - - - 

Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel NED (I) 4/5 Yes 1 - - - 
Mr. Jayantilal Patel NED (I) 4/5 Yes - - - - 
Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani NED  5/5 Yes - - - - 

 
C. Details of Directorships along with category held by Directors in other Listed Entities: 
Name of Director Name of listed entity Category of Directorship 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel - - 
Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel - - 
Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel - - 
Mr. Jayantilal Patel - - 
Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani - - 
 
 
 



 

 A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 9 - 2 0  Page 20 

2.3 Meeting of Members: 
 Annual General Meeting 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, 59
th

 Annual General Meeting of the company was 
held on 28

th
 September, 2019.  

 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM)   
No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held during the year.   
 

2.4  Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 
Mr. Damodarbhai Patel, Managing Director is father-in-law of Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani. 
 

2.5  Details of Shareholding of Non- Executive Directors:  

Name of Director No. of shares held as on March 31, 2020 % of equity 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel NIL - 
Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel NIL - 
Mr. Jayantilal Patel NIL - 
Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani NIL - 
 
There are no convertible instruments held by the non-executive directors of the Company. 
 

2.6 Information supplied to the Board  
               All information as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is made available to the Board. 
 
2.7 Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
 Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the familiarization programme 

aims to provide independent directors with the industry scenario, the socio-economic environment in 
which the Company operates, the business model, the operational and financial performance of the 
Company, significant developments to enable them to take well informed decisions in a timely 
manner. The familiarization programme also seeks to update the directors on the roles, 
responsibilities, rights and duties under the Companies Act, 2013 and other statutes. 

 
 There was no independent director appointed during the year. Details of the familiarization programme 

imparted to independent directors is available on the following link 
http://www.brcl.in/FamiliarizationProgram.aspx.  

 
2.8 Code of Conduct 

In compliance with Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
adopted a Code of Conduct (the ‘Code’). This Code is applicable to the Members of the Board, Senior 
Management Personnel and all employees of the Company and Subsidiaries. The Code lays down 
the standard of conduct which is expected to be followed by the Board of Directors and the 
designated employees in their business dealings particularly on matters relating to integrity in the 
work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 
examples on the expected behavior from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure. 

 
All the members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance to the 
Code, as at March 31, 2020. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Managing Director is provided 
in the certification section of the Annual Report. 
 
The Code is displayed on the Company’s website viz. http://www.brcl.in/CodeOfConduct.aspx. 
 

2.9 Insider Trading Code 
The company has adopted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the Directors and designated persons of the Company. The code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s 
shares by the Directors and the designated persons while in possession of unpublished price 
sensitive information in relation to the company and during the period when the Trading Window is 
closed. The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer is responsible for implementation of the Code. 
This Code is displayed on the Company’s website viz. http://www.brcl.in/CodeOfConduct.aspx. 
 

2.10 Core skills/expertise/competencies of the Board of Directors 
The Board of The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited comprises of professionals drawn from diverse 
fields. They bring with them a wide range of skills and experience to the Board, which enhances the 
quality of the decision making process of the Board. The Board has identified the following skill set 
with reference to its Business and Industry which are available with the Board: 
 
Name of Director  Expertise in specific functional area 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel Finance, Business Strategy, Industry Experience, General Management  
Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel Corporate Finance, Import-Export, Industry Experience, Legal/Secretarial 

Compliance 
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Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel Business Management, Business Strategy, Corporate Finance, 
Legal/Secretarial Compliance. 

Mr. Jayantilal Patel Corporate Finance, Industry Experience, Business Management, 
Legal/Secretarial Compliance.  

Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani Business Management, Business Strategy, Corporate Finance, 
Legal/Secretarial Compliance. 

 
 The Board is satisfied that the independent directors have met their criteria of independence as 

required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and relevant declarations have been received 
from the directors.  

 
2.11 BOARD COMMITEES: 
  Details of the Board Committees and other related information are provided hereunder: 
  

Audit  
Committee 

Nomination And 
Remuneration Committee 

Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel - Chairman 
      NED (I)      

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel - Chairman 
      NED (I)       

Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel -Chairman 
      NED (I)  

Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

Mr. Jayantilal Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

Mr. Jayantilal Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel - Member 
      NED (I) 

   
A) AUDIT COMMITTEE:  

 
Constitution 
The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. The 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 
The Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors. 
 
1. Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel  - Chairman - NED (I) 
2. Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. Patel  - Member   - NED (I) 
3. Mr. Jayantilal D. Patel   - Member   - NED (I)  
 
All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting and financial 
expertise.  

 
Terms of reference 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Listing Regulations, 2015 and 
include the following: 
 
Duties/Powers/Responsibilities: 
• Recommendation for appointment, reappointment and terms of appointment of Auditors of the 

Company. 
• Review and monitor auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of Audit 

Process. 
• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 
a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
management. 

 d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
 e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
 f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
 g) Modified opinions in the draft audit report. 
• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval; 
• Approval/Subsequent modification of transaction of the Company with related parties. 
• Scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investments. 
• Valuation of undertakings and assets of the Company. 
• Valuation of internal financial control and risk management systems. 
• Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public and related matters. 
• Establish and review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism under the Whistle-Blower policy of 

the Company and review the functioning of the legal compliance mechanism. 
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Call for Comments of the Auditors: 
The Audit Committee may call for the Comments of the Auditors about internal control systems, the 
scope of Audit, including observations and review of financial statements before their submission to 
the Board and any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the 
Company. 
 
Meetings and attendance 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Audit Committee of the Company met 5(five) times on 
30.05.2019, 13.08.2019, 14.11.2019, 10.02.2020 & 18.03.2020. The gap between two Audit 
Committee meetings did not exceed four months.  
 
The members of the Audit Committee and attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at the 
meetings held during the year are as under. 
 

Name No. of Audit Committee Meetings attended 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel – Chairman – NED (I) 4/5 

Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. Patel – Member – NED (I) 4/5 

Mr. Jayantilal D. Patel       – Member – NED (I) 4/5 

   
 B)   NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
Pursuant to section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations, 2015 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of following Independent Directors viz;  
(i) Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel, (ii) Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. Patel and (iii) Mr. Jayantilal D. Patel  
 
Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel act as Chairman of the said committee. 
 
Meetings and Attendance 
1(One) meeting was held on 30.05.2019 of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the 
year under review. All the members of the Committee were present at the meeting.  
 
The members of the Committee and attendance of each member of the Committee at the meeting 
held during the year is as under. 
 

Name No. of Meetings attended 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai H. Patel – Chairman – NED (I) 1/1 

Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. Patel – Member – NED (I) 1/1 

Mr. Jayantilal Patel           – Member – NED (I) 1/1 

 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has, inter alia, the following mandate as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of The SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and Section 17 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 some of which are: 
 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director, KMP or other employees and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the 
appointment & remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board of 
Directors and specifying the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its 
committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, the Committee or by an 
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance; 

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; 
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of Directors 
on their appointment, remuneration and removal; 

5. Administer the Company’s equity incentive plans, including the review and grant of options to 
eligible employees under the plans and the terms and conditions applicable to such options, 
subject to the provisions of each plan; 

6. Deciding on whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors; 

7. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 
8. Carrying out any other function as prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and any other statutory/regulatory body from time to 
time; 

 
No remuneration was paid to any director for the period ended March 31, 2020. 
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company: 
 
In accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) has, inter alia, the following responsibilities: 
 

A.  Appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management: 
•  The NRC will have the responsibility and authority to decide the essential and desirable skills/ 

competencies/expertise/experience/criteria of independence required from the individuals for the 
office of Directors, KMP & Senior Management Personnel. 

 
•  The expertise required from the Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel would be defined 

based on the Company's strategy and needs. 
 
•  The NRC shall review the criteria for the role and define the role Specifications for the appointment. 

 
•  In case of Directors and KMP, in addition to the above specifications the NRC shall ensure that the 

candidate possesses the requisite qualifications and attributes as per the Applicable Laws. 
 
B.  Identifying candidates who are qualified to become Directors, KMP & Senior Management Personnel: 
•  The NRC may assign the responsibility of identifying the candidate for the final interview by the NRC 

to the following: 
 
•  To Managing Director/Whole Time Director and Chairman of NRC, in case of selection of Directors; 

and  
 
•  To the Managing Director/Whole Time Director and Human Resource Officer (HRO), in case of 

selection of KMP & Senior Management Personnel. 
 
•  The NRC shall identify member(s) of the Board who will interview the candidate recommended to the 

NRC as above. 
 

•  Upon selection of the candidate, the NRC shall make a recommendation to the Board for appointment 
of Director/ KMP/ Senior Management Personnel. For discharging this duty the NRC may seek inputs 
from the persons responsible for identifying the candidates stated in as above. 
 

•  The appointment of Directors and KMP shall be subject to the compliance of the Act, Part D of 
Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Article of 
Association. 
 

C.  Selection of Independent Directors: 
•  Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent people having an independent 

standing in their respective field/profession, and who can effectively contribute to the Company's 
business and policy decisions are considered by the Human Resources, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, for appointment, as an Independent Directors on the Board. The 
Committee, inter alia, considers qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of 
Directorships and Memberships held in various committees of other companies by such persons in 
accordance with the Company's Policy for Selection of Directors and determining Directors' 
independence. The Board considers the Committee's recommendation, and takes appropriate 
decision. Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a 
Director and thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that 
he meets the criteria of independence as provided under law. 

 
D.  Term of Appointment: 
•  The term of appointment of Directors shall be governed by the provisions of the Act and Part D of 

Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
•  The term of the KMP (other than the MD) and Senior Management Personnel shall be governed by 

the prevailing policies of the Company. 
 
E.  Letter of Appointment to Independent Directors: 
•  The appointment of Independent Directors shall be formalized through a letter of appointment to be 

issued by the Company in accordance with the Applicable Laws. 
 
F.  Removal of Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel: 
•  The Removal of Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel may be warranted due to reasons 

such as disqualification prescribed under the Applicable Laws and / or disciplinary reasons. 
 
•  In regard to removal of any Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel, the NRC shall in 

consultation with the MD and the Chairman of Audit committee, for Directors, and with the MD for 
KMP and Senior Management Personnel, review the performance and/or other factors meriting a 
removal and subject to the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company 
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recommend to the Board its course of action. 
 

G.  Retirement of Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel: 
•  The retirement age of Directors shall be as per the Applicable Laws. 
•  The retirement age of KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be as per the prevailing policy of 

the Company subject to the Applicable Laws. 
 
H.  Remuneration of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
 
• Remuneration to Executive Director(s): 
•  The remuneration payable to Executive Director(s) shall be determined by the NRC and 

recommended to the Board for approval. Such remuneration (including revisions thereof) shall be 
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and/or Central Government, wherever 
required under the Act, Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company. 

 
•  The remuneration shall be in accordance with and subject to the ceiling limits and other conditions 

prescribed under the Act, Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company. 
 
•  Additionally, the Executive Director may be entitled to Employee Stock Options granted under any 

Employee Stock Option Plan/ Scheme(s), Stock Appreciation Rights granted under any Stock 
Appreciation Rights Plan/Scheme(s) of the Company and such other long term incentive schemes of 
the Company. 

 
•  Annual revisions in the remuneration within the remuneration limits approved by the Board, 

shareholders/Central Government, shall be based on the prevailing policy of the Company and the 
same shall be approved by the NRC. The Board shall note such annual increases.  

 
• Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors (NED): 
•  The remuneration (including revisions thereof) payable to the NED shall be in accordance with and 

subject to the ceiling limits and other conditions prescribed under the Act, Listing Regulations and the 
Articles of Association of the Company. 

•  The NRC shall determine the remuneration to NED including the mode, quantum, recipients of the 
remuneration and the frequency of payment of such remuneration, and recommend the same to the 
Board for approval. 

•  The remuneration of NED may comprise following: 
a) Remuneration/Commission; and 
b) Sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board and its Committees. 
 

•  The remuneration of NED (including revisions thereof) shall be based on certain financial parameters 
like the performance of the Company, its market capitalization, etc., industry benchmarks, role of the 
Director and such other relevant factors. 

 
•  NEDs shall not be entitled to any stock option or stock appreciation rights of the Company. 
 
•  The NRC shall determine the periodicity at which such remuneration shall be reviewed and revised. 
 
• Remuneration to KMP & Senior Management Personnel: 
•  The NRC shall approve the remuneration policy of the Company applicable to KMP and Senior 

Management Personnel. 
•  For appointments to the office of KMP or Senior Management Personnel, the NRC shall approve the 

remuneration and recommend the same to the Board for its approval. 
 

•  The NRC shall approve the annual revision in the remuneration of KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel based on the remuneration policy of the Company applicable to KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel. 

 
•  Factors to be considered while determining the remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior 

Management Personnel While determining the remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel. 

 
• The NRC shall ensure the following: 
•  The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel to deliver the quality required to run the Company 
successfully;  
 

•  Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and 

 
•  Remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the 
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working of the Company and its goals. 
 
• Board Evaluation: 
• The Board is committed to assessing its own performance as a Board in order to identify its strengths 

and areas in which it may improve its Functioning. Towards this end, the NRC shall establish the 
criteria and processes for evaluation of performance of Individual Directors, Chairman of the Board, 
the Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board and recommend the same to the Board. 
 

•  The Board is responsible for monitoring and reviewing of the Board Evaluation framework. 
 
•  The NRC is responsible for carrying out evaluation of every director's performance and various criteria 

can be framed by NRC in separate policy also. 
 
•  The performance evaluation shall take place annually. It shall be the responsibility of the Chairman of 

the NRC to organize the evaluation process; 
 
•  The appointment / re-appointment / continuation of Directors on the Board shall be subject to the 

outcome of the yearly evaluation process. 
• Meeting of Independent Directors: 
•  Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the 

attendance of Non-independent Directors and members of the management. 
 
•  Such meeting shall review the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

&  
 
•  review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive 

Directors and Non-executive Directors; 
 

• Familiarization Programme For Independent Directors: 
The Company will impart Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors inducted on the 
Board of the Company. Familiarization - immediately upon appointment of Director the Familiarization 
Programme of the Company will provide information relating to the Company, Specialty Chemical 
industry, business model of the Company, business processes & policies, geographies in which 
Company operates, etc. The Programme intends to improve awareness of the Independent Directors 
on their roles, rights, responsibilities towards the Company. Further, the Familiarization Programme 
shall also provide information relating to the financial performance of the Company and budget and 
control process of the Company and all other information's which affect its rights and responsibility.  
 
The MD or such other officer(s) of the Company, duly authorized by the MD shall lead the 
Familiarization Programme. The KMPs or Senior Management Personnel may participate in the 
Programme for providing various inputs. 

• Diversity Of Board Of Directors: 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall ensure the diversity of the board of director is in 
order with the requirement of the size of Company. Further, NRC shall ensure scope of work of 
Directors in the Company and portfolios which are going to be allocated to them shall be based on 
diverse experience of Directors. 

 
NRC shall also ensure that the candidate is having educational qualification, expertise and experience 
which are required for the same. 
 
In case if there is vacancy in between, than NRC shall appoint the required Directors in accordance 
with the Act and Listing Regulations and after considering the above mentioned things. 

 
Evaluation of Board Effectiveness 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually, as well as the evaluation of all the Committees of the Board. 
The Committee formulated the criteria for evaluation of the Chairman, Board of Directors, Members of 
the Committee and Individual Directors and the evaluation is conducted accordingly. The evaluation 
criteria included aspects related to competency of directors, strategy and performance evaluation, 
governance, independence, effectiveness, structure of the board/committee, level of engagement and 
contribution, independence of judgement etc. The performance evaluation of the independent 
directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairperson and 
non-independent directors was carried out by the independent directors. The directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process and its results, which reflected in the overall management of 
the Board and its committees with the Company. 
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C) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
The composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of Listing Regulations, 2015.  
 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of following Directors viz; (i) Mr. Bhaveshbhai V. 
Patel (ii) Mr. Bhavanjibhai H Patel and (iii) Mr. Damodarbhai B. Patel. 
 
The Committee reviews the redresses of shareholders' complaints relating to transfer, transmission, 
non-receipt of annual reports and other shares related complaints. The Committee also periodically 
reports to the Board in each Board Meeting the number and Category of the shareholders complaints 
received and status of their resolution.  
 
The Committee met 7 times during 2019-20 on 30.04.2019, 30.05.2019, 29.06.2019, 31.07.2019, 
31.08.2019, 30.09.2019 & 31.12.2019. The attendance of committee members are as under –  
  

Name No. of Meetings attended 

Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel – Chairman – NED (I) 7/7 

Mr. Damodarbhai Patel – Member – ED 6/7 

Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel – Member – NED (I) 7/7 

Details pertaining to the number of complaints received and responded and the status thereof during 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 are as follows: 

  

No. of complaints received during the year 2 

No. of complaints resolved during the year 2 

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NIL 

 
2.12 Independent Directors 

The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. A formal letter 
of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in Companies Act, 2013 has been issued and 
disclosed on website of the Company viz. www.brcl.in.  

 
 Number of Independent Directorships 

In compliance with the Listing Regulations, Directors of the Company do not serve as an Independent 
Director in more than seven listed companies. In case he/she is serving as a Whole-Time Director in 
any listed company, does not hold the position of Independent Director in more than three listed 
companies. 
 

 Independent Directors’ Meeting 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Schedule IV (Code for Independent Directors) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors met 
on March 18, 2020, inter alia, to discuss: 
 
• Evaluation of the performance of the Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 

whole. 
• Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman. 
• Evaluation of the Quality, content and timelines of the flow of information between the 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
its duties. 

 
All the independent Directors of the company were present at the Meeting.  

 
3.   MANAGEMENT                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
3.1  A Report on Management Discussion and Analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report. 
 

3.2  Disclosure of material transaction 
During the period there was no material financial or commercial transaction which had potential 
interest of the senior Management Personnel or which might have had potential conflict with the 
interest of the company. 
 

3.3  Accounting Policies 
The company has not adopted any Accounting Policy, which is contrary to the Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”).  
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4.   GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
          Details of last three Annual General Meetings Held: 

Particulars FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 
Day Saturday Saturday Saturday 
Date 30

th
 September, 

2017 
29

th
 September, 

2018 
28

th
 September, 2019 

Time 9:00 a.m. 10:00 a.m. 10:00 a.m. 
Venue Patidar Bhavan,  

Kadodara, 
Surat-394 327. 

Patidar Bhavan,  
Kadodara, 
Surat-394 327. 

Patidar Bhavan,  
Kadodara, 
Surat-394 327. 

Special Resolution 2(Two) NIL 3(Three) 
 
Two special resolutions were passed at the 57

th
 Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30

th
 

September, 2017. One to authorize board for borrow money under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 an rules made thereunder and other to authorize board to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of 
the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the company under section 180(1)(a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

 
No special resolution was passed at the 58

th
 Annual General Meeting of the company held on 29

th
 

September, 2018. 
 
Three special resolutions were passed at the 59

th
 Annual General Meeting of the company held on 28

th
 

September, 2019 for reappointment of Mr. Bhavanjibhai Patel (DIN-01690183), Mr. Bhaveshbhai Patel 
(DIN-03270321) and Mr. Jayantilal Patel (DIN-05339476) as Independent Directors of the company for 
second term of 5 years.  

 
 POSTAL BALLOT  
 During the period under review the company has not passed any resolution by Postal Ballot. 
 
5.  OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 a. During the period, there were no transaction of material nature, with the Promoters, Directors and 
relatives, the Management and the company’s Subsidiaries, that had potential conflict with the interest 
of the company. Policy is uploaded on www.brcl.in. The company has not entered into any transaction 
with any person or entity belonging to the promoter/promoter group which holds 10% or more 
shareholding in the listed entity.  

 
 b. During the year 2019-20, there was no fine, penalty nor any stricture passed by SEBI, Stock 

Exchanges or any other Statutory Authority on matters relating to capital markets except for the 
actions initiated under circular reference number LIST/COMP/OPS/16 /2019-2020 dated June 11, 
2019 by the exchange. Also, there was no other fine, penalty nor any stricture passed by SEBI, Stock 
Exchanges or any other Statutory Authority on matters relating to capital markets, in the last three 
years. 

 
 The company was closed during the period of 1999-2004 and 2008-till date. As such the stock 

Exchange had suspended the trading in the company. The company is already in process of meeting 
all the requirement of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on matters relating to 
capital market.  

 
c.  The Audit Committee has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle-Blower Policy, which 

provides a formal mechanism for all Directors and employees of the Company to approach the 
Management of the Company (Audit Committee in case where the concern involves the Senior 
Management) and make protective disclosures to the Management about unethical behavior, actual 
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The disclosures 
reported are addressed in the manner and within the time frames prescribed in the Policy. The 
Company affirms that no director or employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. Policy is uploaded on www.brcl.in.    

 
d. The Company has also complied with and adopted the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Secretarial Standards. 
 
e.  In line with the requirements of Regulation 17(9) of the SEBI LODR, the Audit Committee and the 

Board of Directors reviewed the managements’ perception of the risks facing the Company, and 
measures taken to minimize the risk. The company’s operational activities are stand still since August 
2008 hence company is no exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is not doing any hedging 
activities. 

 
f.  Board of Directors of the Company confirm that in their opinion the independent directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
and are independent of the management. 
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g.  Policy on related party transaction and all other Polices/Disclosures required under Companies Act, 
2013 / SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 are available on the weblink: http://www.brcl.in/Policies.aspx.  

 
h.   As required by Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Managing Director and the Chief 
 Financial Officer have submitted a Certificate to the Board of Directors in the prescribed format for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2020 confirming the correctness of the financial statements and 
cashflow statement, and adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting of matters to the 
Audit Committee, which is annexed. 

 
i.  Disclosures with regard to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account – Not applicable. 
 
j.  There were no funds raised by the Company through Preferential allotment or qualified institutional 

placement as specified under the above mentioned regulation during the financial year 2019-20. 
 
k.  A Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary, Mr. Manish R. Patel, is received by the 

company stating that none of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the board/ministry of 
corporate affairs or any such statutory authority and the same is annexed to this report as “Annexure 
C”. 

 
l.    During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, all recommendations of the Committees of the Board 

of Directors, which are mandatorily required, have been accepted by the Board of Directors of your 
Company. 

 
m. The company has obtained a certificate from the Auditors of the company regarding compliance with 

the provisions of the Corporate Governance laid down in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with the Stock Exchange, which is annexed.  

 
n.  Fee disclosures as required by Clause 10(k), Part C, Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

The total fees for all services paid by The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited, on a consolidated 
basis, to M/s Kansariwala & Chevli, Statutory Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2020, is as 
follows: 

(` In lakhs) 
Fees for audit and related services paid to M/s Kansariwala & Chevli 4.00 
Other fees paid to M/s Kansariwala & Chevli & Affiliate firms and to entities of the 
network of which the statutory auditor is a part.  

- 

Total fees 4.00 

 
6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The quarterly financial results are generally published in the Financial Express in English and Pratap 
Darpan in Gujarati. All other official news releases are first forwarded to stock exchange and 
subsequently released to the media. Further, all periodic statutory reports and other official news 
releases are also uploaded on the company’s website www.brcl.in.   
 

7. ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 
 

1.  Forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
Annual General Meeting                                 : Tuesday, 29

th
 of September, 2020 at 09:00 a.m.  

          Day, Date, Time & Venue          : Patidar Bhavan, Kadodara, Surat-394327 
 

2.    Financial period/Calendar                            : The financial year of the Company is from      
                                                                              April 1

st
 to March 31

st
 each year 

 
3. Date of Book Closure         : Wednesday, 23

rd
 September, 2020 to 

                                                                                              Tuesday, 29
th
 September, 2020.  

 
4. Listing of Stock Exchange        : BSE Limited 

                                                                                              Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,  
                                                                                              Mumbai – 400 001, Maharastra 
                 The trading of shares is suspended due to penal reasons. 
                 Stock Code          : 500270                   
                 CIN          : L99999GJ1958PLC000892 
                 Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL      : INE 461A01024 
 

5. Registrar and          : M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd., 
                  Share Transfer Agents                        C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,   
                                                                                              Mumbai 400 083 

6. Share Transfer System         :  
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Under the Share Transfer system followed, the request for share transfers are processed subject to 
the documents being valid and complete in all respects. The share Certificates duly transferred is 
dispatched within 30 days from the date of receiving the request. When there is an objection, the 
shares are returned to the party within 2-3 days of their receipt along with an objection letter. 

 
7. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING PATTERN: (As at 31

st
 March, 2020) 

            Category Number of Shares 
Held 

  Percentage of        
Holding (%) 

Promoters 10893147 47.545 
Mutual Funds & UTI 3627 0.016 
Banks, Financial Institutions and Insurance 
Companies(Central/State Government 
Institutions/Non Government Institutions) 

390663 1.705 

Private Corporate Bodies 8168147 35.651 
NRIs/OCBs 532811 2.325 
FII 435 0.002 
Indian Public 2921783 12.753 
Clearing Members 746 0.003 
Total 22,911,359 100.00 

 
8. DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING (As at 31

st
 March, 2020)                                

Shareholding of 
Nominal Value (Rs.) 

Shareholder Shareholder 
Number of 

holders 
% of holders Amount % of amount 

1 – 5000 78558 99.644 16036920 7.000 
5001 – 10000 128 0.162 947680 0.414 
10001 – 20000  35 0.044 467190 0.204 
20001 – 30000 18 0.023 440090 0.192 
30001 – 40000 4 0.005 140180 0.061 
40001 – 50000 6 0.008 280840 0.123 
50001 – 100000 25 0.032 2039640 0.890 
100001 & above  65 0.082 208761050 91.117 
Total 78,839 100.00 2,29,113,590 100.00 

 
9.     DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES: 

 
The Shares of the company were dematerialized with effect from 28.08.2002. The National 
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited were the depository 
of the shares of the company. Under SEBI Circular SMDRP/POLICY/CIR-23/2000 dated May 29, 
2000 the Company’ shares are in compulsory demat segment for the trading and to do any 
transaction of shares. The shareholders of the company can forward their physical share 
certificates of the company to M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd. Through their DP to convert the 
same into demat mode. 11,74,985 shares out of 2,29,11,359 shares of the company have been 
dematerialized as at March 31, 2020. 
 
11,74,985 Equity Shares aggregating to 5.13% of the total Equity Capital is held in dematerialized 
form as on 31.03.2020 of which 3.79% (8,67,999 Equity Shares) of total equity capital is held with 
NSDL and 1.34% (3,06,986 Equity Shares) of total equity capital is held with CDSL as on March 31, 
2020. 
 

10. Number of Shareholders (As at March 31, 2020): 78,839 
 

11.  OUTSTANDING GDR/ADR/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, 
CONVERSION DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY 

 
There were no outstanding GDRs /ADRs or any Convertible Instruments for the period under report. 
 

12.    Plant location   : Fatehnagar, Surat-395220 
 
13. Address for correspondence :  

The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
P. O. Fatehnagar, Udhna, Surat – 394220 
Gujarat  
(T) 0261-2899555 
Email – brcsurat@gmail.com 

M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd. 
C 101, 247 Park, L BS Marg, Vikhroli West,   
Mumbai - 400083 
(T) 022- 28515644 
Email – support@sharexindia.com 

 
14. List of all credit rating agencies: 
  No credit rating is obtained by the company. 
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DECLARATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
To, 
The Members of 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
 
As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 2020.      
          
         For The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
 
 
Place: Surat         Damodarbhai B. Patel 
Date:  31

st
 August, 2020       Managing Director 

          DIN – 00056513 

 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

[Reg. 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015] 
 

In terms of Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify to the Board of 
Directors that: 
 

1) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of The Baroda Rayon 
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and that to the best of my knowledge and 
belief: 

 
(i)  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 
 
(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing Indian accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

2) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 
the year ended March 31, 2020 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of 
conduct. 

 
3)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 

we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control for financial reporting and have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

 
4)  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 
(i)  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year ended 31st March, 

2020; 
 
(ii)  Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year ended 31st March, 2020 and 

that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
 
(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 

the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system 
over financial reporting. 

 
For The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
 
 
                                                                                               
Damodarbhai Patel    J. K. Jakhotia 

        Managing Director    Chief Financial Officer 
        DIN-00056513 

 
Date: 31

st
 August, 2020 

Place: Surat   
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Annexure - C 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members of 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
(CIN – L99999GJ1958PLC000892) 
P. O. Fatehnagar, Udhna, 
Surat – 394220, Gujarat 
 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited having CIN L99999GJ1958PLC000892 and having registered office at 
P. O. Fatehnagar, Udhna, Surat – 394220, Gujarat (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before 
me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31
st
 March, 2020 have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.  

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in the 
Company (As per MCA record) 

1 Mr. Damodarbhai Bhimjibhai Patel 00056513 10/03/2008 
2 Mr. Bhavanjibhai Haribhai Patel 01690183 10/03/2008 
3 Mr. Bhaveshbhai Vishrambhai Patel 03270321 09/05/2011 
4 Mr. Jayantilal Patel 05339476 28/07/2012 
5 Mrs. Vidhya Viralbhai Bhavani 07159576 29/04/2015 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

Place: Surat              MANISH R. PATEL 
Date: 31

st
 August, 2020                             Company Secretary in Practice  

               ACS No: 19885 
               COP No. : 9360 

              UDIN: A019885B000635601 
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF THE CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE  

 
 
To 
The Members of   
The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by “The Baroda Rayon Corporation 
Limited” (the Company), for the financial year ended on 31

st
 March 2020, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 

and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing 
Regulations”). 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate 
Governance, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015. 

 
We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  
  

  For Kansariwala & Chevli 
                 Chartered Accountants 

       (FRN 123689W) 
 
 

Date: 30
th

 June, 2020                                                                                                                         A. H. Chevli 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                               Partner 
                                                                                                                                       Membership No. 038259 

UDIN: 20038259AAAABJ2239 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BARODA RAYON CORPORATION LIMITED 
 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Qualified Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date, notes to financial statements and the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
(i)  Attention is drawn to Note 29 to the Standalone financial statements regarding non provision of interest 

for  ` 491,89,48,116/- of overdue debts availed under the Modified Draft Restructuring Scheme (MDRS) 
till March, 2020. No provision for interest has been made in the statement of profit & loss for overdue 
loans availed in Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (MDRS) for ` 2,28,48,18,175/- hence there is 
understatement of reported loss and accumulated losses. Owing to the pending legal cases, the 
Company could not liquidate the asset and repay the mentioned loan amount as per stipulation, which 
has become overdue.   

 
(ii)   Employee Union had filed the litigation for recovery of their total dues against the Company at Gujarat 

High Court. The Company had referred the said matter with Hon’ble BIFR for making necessary 
modification in Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (MDRS). In pursuant to Government Notification 
S.O. No 3568(E) dated 25.11.2016 and S.O. 3569(E) dated 25.11.2016, BIFR has been wound up w.e.f. 
01.12.2016. In pursuant to Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (Removal of Difficulties) Order, 2017 vide 
notification dated 24/05/2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs relating to amendment to the Sick 
Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003, provided  that any scheme sanctioned under 
sub-section (4) or any scheme under implementation under sub-section (12) of section 18 of the Sick 
Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 shall be deemed to be an approved resolution plan 
under sub-section (1) of section 31 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and the same shall be 
dealt with, in accordance with the provisions of Part II of the said Code. Subject to the final verdict, we are 
unable to express any opinion on probable liabilities, which may arise in future. 

 
(iii)   According to Ind AS-19 related to employees benefits, the company has not given any effect of gratuity 

liabilities as per actuarial valuation, hence the effect of gratuity expenses as per Ind AS-19 is not reported 
in other comprehensive income. As per information provided by the company, its operational activities are 
standstill since Aug’2008 and due to non availability of key personnel there is no detail available for 
actuarial valuation. Further the matter related to employee’s dues is pending before Hon’ble Gujarat High 
Court. However the Company has started the process of settlement of employee dues and out of the total 
employee’s dues, most of the retired employees claims has been settled. 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of matter          
i) The balances for Sundry Debtors, Sundry creditors, loans & advances, bank balances, statutory and 

other liabilities as on 31
st
 March, 2020 are subject to confirmation. The figures reported in the financial 

statement are as per the ledger account. 
 
ii)  The Company has applied the rate of depreciation on the basis of residual value of the fixed assets as 

contemplated in Schedule II of Companies Act' 2013, as the entire fixed assets register have been 
updated with physical verification. As all the plants are very old, the useful life of assets are completed as 
per the years mentioned in the Schedule II of the Companies Act' 2013. 
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iii) We draw attention to Note 32 of the accompanying standalone financial results, as regards the 
management's evaluation of uncertainties related to COVID-19 and its consequential effects on the 
carrying value of the assets as at March 31, 2020 and operations of the Company. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

 
iv) We draw attention to Note 33 of the accompanying standalone financial results, as regards to the 

exceptional item of ` 20,57,64,926/- comprises of ` 6,87,27,273/- towards waiver of interest and penalty 
of excise duty which was waived by the government vide order dated 29th February, 2020 under Sabka 
Vishwas Scheme, 2019 and ` 13,70,37,653/- towards waiver of interest and penalty of Gujarat Sales tax 
which was waived by the government vide order dated 15th February, 2020 under Vera Samadhan 
Yojana 2019.   

 
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  
The net worth of the Company had been fully eroded due to the continued losses, the Company's entire 
operations have become standstill since August' 2008 and there are many legal cases pending against the 
Company which may affect the future functioning of the Company. The Company is planning to overcome from 
this financial constraint and restart the operation subject to clearance from Labour Union litigation in near 
future. 
 
The above factors cast a significant uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Pending the resolution of the above uncertainties, the Company has prepared the aforesaid statement on a 

going concern basis.  
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 
 

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Refer Note 22, 23 & 25 to the accompanying 
standalone financial statements:  
 
As on 31

st
 March, 2020, the Company has recognised 

liabilities relating, pending litigation, employees 
gratuities, wage settlement to the extent it is 
crystallised. However the liabilities which are in the 
nature of contingent are disclosed by way of notes.  
 
The principal of Going Concern is also depended on 
pending verdict from the court of law. 
 
Considering the materiality of the amounts involved, 
the significant management judgement required in 
estimating various liabilities being inherently 
subjective, this matter has been identified as a key 
audit matter for the current year audit. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 
Our procedures included, but were not limited to 
the following: 
(i) Obtained an understanding of management’s 
process and evaluated design and tested operating 
effectiveness of controls around identification of 
indicators of various crystallized and contingent 
liabilities under Ind AS. 
(ii) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss.  
Based on our procedures, we also considered the 
adequacy of disclosures in respect of Liabilities 
related to Employees in the notes to the standalone 
financial statements. Please also refer to our 
paragraph of qualified opinion of our report for basis. 

 
Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises of Management Reports such as Board’s Report, Management Discussion and 
Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Business Responsibility Report (but does not include the 
Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon) which we obtained prior to the date of this 
Auditor’s Report, and the remaining section of the Company’s Annual Report, which are expected to be made 
available to us after that date. 
 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
Auditor’s Report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
When we read the other sections of Annual Report (other than those mentioned above), if we conclude that 
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there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance and take necessary actions, as applicable under the applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in 
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
  
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
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may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 
31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’’) issued by the Central 

Government of India, in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, and on 
the basis of such checks of books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure-A” attached hereto our 
comments on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.  

 
2.   As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.  

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
st
 March, 2020 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure-B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 
 
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements (Refer Note 23 to the financial statements). 
 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; and  

 
(iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

For Kansariwala & Chevli 
                 Chartered Accountants 

       (FRN 123689W) 
 
 

Date: 30
th

 June, 2020                                                                                                                         A. H. Chevli 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                               Partner 
                                                                                                                                       Membership No. 038259 

UDIN - 20038259AAAABJ2239 

 
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 
31

st
 March, 2020. 

 
With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that:  
 
i.  (a)  The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of its fixed asset. 
 

(b)   According to the information given to us, the management has physically verified the Fixed Assets of 
the Company in current financial year. The Company has recognized discrepancies/differences in the 
verification of Fixed Assets. 
 

(c)  The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 4 on fixed assets to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company,  
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ii. The Company was maintaining proper records of inventory, however after suspension of manufacturing 

activity there are no records required to be maintained as there were no activity, accordingly there is no 
question of any discrepancies to be reported. However, the Company has not considered the impairment 
aspect for the carrying value of stock, which are old and obsolete.  

iii. The Company has not granted any loans to parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of 
the Act. There are no firms /LLPs/ other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Act, hence para 3(iii) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

 
iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 

with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and 
investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it. 

 
v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 

76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. The old deposits have been paid 
except deposits of ` 1,95,000/- which is under litigation since long. 

 
vi.  Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is not required to maintain 

cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. Since there are no 
manufacturing activities since August’ 2008, the Company has not maintained the same. 

  
vii. (a) The statutory liabilities are restructured and deferred as per the comprehensive rehabilitation scheme 

approved by the BIFR, however various statutory agencies are in process of granting their sanction as 
per said scheme for deferment and settlement of said liabilities. Hence, we are reporting the Undisputed 
Statutory dues, which is subject to confirmation from respective departments and shown as per the 
ledger account  including provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income tax, , Custom duty, cess 
and other statutory dues with appropriate authorities for a period more than six months from the date 
they became payable, which  are as under;  

 
SR. 
NO. 

STATUTORY DUES AMOUNT 

(in ` ) 

a. Custom Duty 6,85,96,547.00 

b. Vat/ Sales Tax 4,70,72,559.00 

c. Provident Fund interest                     91,08,812.00 

d. Employee’s State Insurance interest 84,68,488.00 

e. Water Tax &  interest thereon 16,11,45,144.00 
f. Textile Committee Cess 6,36,223.00 

g. Water Cess (Gujarat Pollution Control Board) 8,34,775.00 

h. Electricity Duty (Power plant) 16,78,01,202.00 

i. BSE Listing fees 5,79,796.00 

j. Surat Municipal Corporation 2,60,76,420.00 

k. Revenue Tax – Mamlatdar Surat 1,37,02,140.00 

 
      Note: 

The said statutory dues are given as per the information and records produced before us. The 

company has received various notices from E.S.I., Provident fund offices, etc claiming penal interest, 

damages and penalty for delay in deposit of their dues which is not ascertainable, hence it is not 

provided in the books.   

 

 (b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has disputed dues of Excise 
duties, which are given below. 

SR. 
NO. 

NAME OF  
STATUE 

NATURE OF DUES AMOUNT  
     (`) 

PERIOD TO 
WHICH THE 
AMOUNT 
RELATES 

FORUM WHERE 
DISPUTE IS 
PENDING 

1. Central Excise 
Act, 1944 

Excise Duty  44,24,28,525/- 2006-2008 Tribunal (CESTAT) 

 
Note:  
1.  Company have requested to BIFR for waiver of duty, Interest, penalty and fine and also refund of ` 70 lakhs 

along with case law related to above Item number 1. It is also mentioned in MDRS circulated dated 13
th
 

October 2015.    
2.  In the matter of Item No. 1, CESTAT has ordered to deposit the amount of ` 25 lakhs and company had 

deposited the same amount and final order is awaited.   
  
viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, 

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or 
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Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.  
 
ix. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the long term & short term 

loan taken from the investor have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 
 
x. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of 
any such case by the Management. 

 
xi. There is no managerial remuneration payable during the year. 
 
xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions 

of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
xiii.The Company has not entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of 

Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. Hence the details of such related party transactions are not required to be 
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.  

 
xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not applicable to the Company. 

 
xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 

him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

For Kansariwala & Chevli 
                 Chartered Accountants 

       (FRN 123689W) 
 
 

Date: 30
th

 June, 2020                                                                                                                         A. H. Chevli 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                               Partner 
                                                                                                                                       Membership No. 038259 

UDIN - 20038259AAAABJ2239  

 
ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of subsection 3 of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Baroda Rayon Corporation 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting 
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
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financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
 
(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 
 
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
Subject to our qualification & other comments of our main report & various comments regarding closure of 
operation & loss of key personnel, in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
Explanatory paragraph 
We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the standalone financial statements of the 
Company, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the related Statement of Profit and 
Loss, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our report dated June 30, 2020, 
expressed a qualified opinion. 
 

For Kansariwala & Chevli 
                 Chartered Accountants 

       (FRN 123689W) 
 
 

Date: 30
th

 June, 2020                                                                                                                         A. H. Chevli 
Place: Surat                                                                                                                                               Partner 
                                                                                                                                       Membership No. 038259 

UDIN - 20038259AAAABJ2239 
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Balance Sheet as at 31

st
 March, 2020 

(`̀̀̀ In lakhs) 

Particulars  Note No. As at  
31

st
 March 2020 

As at  
31

st
 March 2019 

I. ASSETS    
(1) Non-current assets     
     (a) Property, plant and Equipment  4 6287.91 6287.91 
     (b) Capital Work in progress - - - 
     (c ) Financial Assets    
         (i) Investments 5 599.91 599.91 
     (d) Other Non-current assets 6 344.73 352.05 
Total Non-Current assets  7232.55 7239.87 

    
(2) Current assets    
     (a) Inventories 7 17.89 17.89 
     (b) Financial Assets    
          (i) Trade Receivables    - - 
          (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 0.20 0.33 
          (iii) Bank Balance other than (ii) above  18.94 11.04 
      (c) Other current assets 9 1891.70 1904.70 
Total Current assets  1928.73 1933.96 

TOTAL ASSETS  9161.28 9173.83 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
(1) Equity    
     (a) Equity share capital 10 2291.14 2291.14 
     (b) Other Equity 11 (24884.84) (26689.56) 
Total Equity  (22593.70) (24398.42) 
(2) Non-current liabilities    
     (a) Borrowings  12 19040.15 18682.15 
Total Non-current liabilities  19040.15 18682.15 

    
(3) Current liabilities    
      (a) Financial liabilities    
           (i) Borrowings 13 3809.98 3738.38 
           (ii) Trade payables 14 384.49 387.94 
(a) total outstanding dues to micro and small 
enterprises and 

 - - 

(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro and small enterprises 

 384.49 387.94 

           (iii) Others 15 699.27 829.40 
      (b) Other current liabilities 16 5168.76 7226.95 
      (c) Provisions 17 2652.33 2707.43 
Total Current liabilities     12714.83                14890.10 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  9161.28 9173.83 

Summary of Significant Accounting policies 2-3   
The accompanying notes to the financial 
statements 

4-35   

The notes referred to above form an integral 
part of financial statements 

   

 
As per our report of even date attached 
 
 
 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No. 123689W 
 
 
 
A.H. Chevli 
Partner 
Membership No. 038259 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Damodarbhai Patel                              Bhavanjibhai Patel 
Managing Director                                 Director 
DIN-00056513                                       DIN-01690183 
 
 
 
Jugal Kishore Jakhotia                       Kunjal Desai 
Chief Financial Officer                           Company Secretary 
                                                               ACS-40809 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 
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Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2020 
(` ` ` ` In lakhs) 

Particulars  Note No. As at  
31

st
 March 2020 

As at  
31

st
 March 2019 

I. Revenue from operation (net) - - - 
II. Other income 18 10.56 6.11 
III. Total income   10.56 6.11 

    
IV. Expenses    
     (a) Cost of Materials Consumed - - - 
     (b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Work-

in-Progress 
- - - 

     (c) Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress - - - 
     (d) Employee Benefit Expenses - 22.32 448.36 
     (e) Finance Costs 19 38.70 30.03 
     (f) Depreciation and Amortization - - - 
     (g) Other Expenses 20 202.46 120.94 
Total expenses   263.48 599.33 

    
V. Profit before tax   (252.93) (593.21) 

    
VI. Exceptional item  (2057.65) - 

    
VII. Profit before tax and after exceptional item  1804.72 (593.21) 

VIII. Tax Expense   - (6.97) 

      (a) Current tax  - - 
      (b) Deferred tax  - - 
      (c) Earlier year tax  - (6.97) 
IX. Profit for the period   1804.72 (586.24) 

    
X. Other comprehensive income     
    (i) Items that will not be reclassified to  Statement of 

Profit and Loss 
 - - 

     (a) Equity Investments measured at Fair  Value (Net of 
Tax) 

 - 0.23 

Total Other Comprehensive Income  - 0.23 
    
XI. Total Comprehensive income for the year  1804.72 (586.01) 

    
XII. Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 

each 
21   

(i) Basic & Diluted  7.88 (2.56) 
(ii) Basic & Diluted (excl. extraordinary item)  (1.10) (2.56) 
Summary of Significant Accounting policies 2-3   
The accompanying notes to the financial statements 4-35   
The notes referred to above form an integral part of 
financial statements 

   

 
As per our report of even date attached 
 
 
 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No. 123689W 
 
 
 
A.H. Chevli 
Partner 
Membership No. 038259 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Damodarbhai Patel                              Bhavanjibhai Patel 
Managing Director                                 Director 
DIN-00056513                                       DIN-01690183 
 
 
 
Jugal Kishore Jakhotia                       Kunjal Desai 
Chief Financial Officer                           Company Secretary 
                                                               ACS-40809 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 
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Cash Flow Statements for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2020 
(`̀̀̀ In lakhs) 

Particulars  As at 31
st

 March 2020 As at 31
st

 March 2019 
`̀̀̀    `̀̀̀    `̀̀̀    ` ` ` `  

A. Cash flow from operating activities     

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax  (252.93) - (593.21) - 
Adjustments for:     
Depreciation and amortisation - - - - 
(Profit) / loss on sale / write off of assets - - - - 
Expense on employee stock option scheme - - - - 
Finance costs 38.70 - 30.03 - 
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital 
changes 

(214.23) (214.23) (563.18) (563.18) 

Changes in working capital:     

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating 
assets: 

    

Inventories - - - - 
Trade receivables - - 16.53 - 
Short-term loans and advances - - - - 
Long-term loans and advances 7.32 - 10.72 - 
Other current assets 13.00 - 80.00 - 
Other non-current assets - - - - 
     
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating 
liabilities: 

    

Trade payables (3.45) - (27.65) - 
Other current liabilities (2188.32) - (224.14) - 
Other long-term liabilities - - - - 
Short-term provisions (55.10) - (211.91) - 
Long-term provisions - - - - 
 (2226.55) (2226.55) (356.45) (356.45) 
  (2440.78)  (919.64) 
Cash flow from exceptional/extraordinary items - 2057.65 - - 
Cash generated from operations - (383.13) - (919.64) 
Net income tax (paid) / refunds - - - - 
Earlier year tax - - - (6.97) 
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 
(A) 

- (383.13) - (912.67) 

     
B. Cash flow from investing activities     
Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital 
advances 

- - - - 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - - - - 
Purchase of Shares - - - - 
Cash flow from exceptional/extraordinary items - - - - 
Proceeds from sale of investments - - - - 
Net income tax (paid) / refunds - - -  
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 
(B) 

- - - - 

     
C. Cash flow from financing activities     
Proceeds from long-term borrowings* 358.00 - 786.90 - 
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 71.60 - 157.38 - 
Finance cost (38.70) - (30.03) - 
Other inflow - - - - 
 390.90 390.90 914.25 914.25 
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities 
(C) 

- 390.90 - 914.25 

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash and cash 
equivalents (A+B+C) 

- 7.77 - 1.58 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year 

- 11.37 - 9.79 

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of 
foreign currency Cash and cash equivalents 

   - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  19.14  11.37 
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Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with 
the Balance Sheet: 

    

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet  19.14  11.37 
Less: Bank balances not considered as Cash and 
cash equivalents  

 -  - 

Add: Current investments considered as part of Cash 
and cash equivalents  

 -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year *  19.14  11.37 

* Comprises:     
(a) Cash on hand  0.20  0.33 
(b) Balances with banks     
(i) In current accounts  18.93  10.44 
(ii) In earmarked accounts (Refer Note below)  0.01  0.60 
  19.14  11.37 

NOTES:     
(i) These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised only for the specific identified purposes. The 
details of the said account is given in Note 9 forming part of financial statements. 
(ii) The increase in the proceeds in long term borrowings are due to regrouping of other current liabilities to 
long term borrowings. 
Summary of Significant Accounting policies                                                     2 - 3 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements                                       4 - 35 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No. 123689W 
 
 
A.H. Chevli 
Partner 
Membership No. 038259 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2020 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars Note No. Equity Shares 
10 Number of shares (`̀̀̀ In lakhs) 

Balance as at 01
st

 April 2019  22911359 2291.14 
Changes during the year  - - 

Balance as at 31
st

 March 2020  22911359 2291.14 

 
                                                                                                                                                                       (`̀̀̀ In lakhs) 

B. Other Equity 
 

Reserves and Surplus Items of 
OCI 

 

Particulars Capital 
Reserve  

Securities 
Premium 

Debenture 
Redempti
on 
Reserve 

Revaluat
ion 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings 

Remeasur
ements of 
net 
defined 
benefit 
plans 

Total 

Balances as at 1st 
April, 2018 

3669.21 5192.97 69.90 - (35035.70) 0.42 (26103.55) 

Profit for the year - - - - (586.24) - (586.24) 
Income for the year - - - - - 0.23 0.23 
Dividend-Equity 
Share 

- - - - - - - 

Corporate Dividend 
Tax 

- - - - - - - 

Utilized for set off of 
Assets 

- - - - - - - 

Transfer to general 
reserve 

- - - - - - - 

Transfer to Retained 
Earnings 

- - (69.90) - 69.90 - - 

Balance as at 31st 
March' 2019 

3669.21 5192.97 - - (35552.04) 0.65 (26689.56) 

Profit for the year - - - - 1804.72 - 1804.72 
Income for the year - - - - - - - 
Dividend-Equity 
Share 

- - - - - - - 

Corporate Dividend 
Tax 

- - - - - - - 

Utilized for set off of 
Assets 

- - - - - - - 

Transfer to general 
reserve 

- - - - - - - 

Transfer from 
retained earnings 

- - - - - - - 

Balance as at 31st 
March, 2020 

3669.21 5192.97 - - (33747.32) 0.65 (24884.84) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2020 
 
1. COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 

The Baroda Rayon Corporation Limited is a public limited company incorporated and has its 
registered office at P.O. Fatehnagar, Udhna, Surat (Gujarat) in India. 

The company is in the business of manufacturing and sale of Viscose Filament yarn, Nylon yarn and 
By product from its manufacturing facility at Udhna, Surat in Gujarat state.    

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
(a) Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of 
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.  

(b) Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost 
convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial instruments and 
defined benefit plans which have been measured at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS. 
Refer note 3(c) and 3(h) below. 

(c)  Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded to the 
nearest lacs with two decimals. 

(d)  Current and non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 
classification.  

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

– it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal 
operating cycle; 

– it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

– it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

– it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

– it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 

– it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

– it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

– the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result 
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of noncurrent financial assets/liabilities respectively. 
All other assets/liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-
current liabilities.  

Operating cycle: 

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
less than twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
a.            Revenue recognition  

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Sale of goods: 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have been transferred to the buyer. 

Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of charges collected from customers like 
transport, packing etc. Provision is made for returns when appropriate. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of consideration received or receivable and is net of price discounts, Freight, allowance for 
volume rebates, and similar items. 

Other Income  

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking into account the amounts invested 
and the rate of interest.  

b.  Property, Plant and Equipment  

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and revaluation cost. All other items of property, plant and 
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Costs 
include freight, import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes and other expenses directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the asset.  

  Depreciation/amortization:  

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets 
specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The range of estimated useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment’s are as under: 

Category Useful Life 

Buildings  30 Years 

Plant, Machinery 7-15 Years 

Moulds& Dies 8 Years 

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years 

Office Equipment  5 Years 

Vehicles 8 Years 

Electric Installation 
                 10 Years 

Laboratory Testing Equipment’s                  10 Years 

Computers                    3 Years 

 
The management believes that the useful life as given above represent the period over which the 
management expects to use these assets. The Company reviews the useful life and residual value at 
each reporting date. 

The Company has  applied the rate of depreciation on the basis of residual value of above fixed 
assets as contemplated in Schedule II of Companies Act' 2013, as the entire fixed register have been 
updated with physical verification. As all the plants are very old, the useful life of assets are completed 
as per the years mentioned in the Schedule II of the Companies Act' 2013. Consequently, the net 
block of assets is consisting of residue value to the extent of 5% of cost and revaluation portion. 
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c.  Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.   

(i) Financial assets  

Initial recognition 

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs 
are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income & fair value through profit or loss.  

a.  Measured at amortized cost: 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost, if it is held under the hold to collect business 
model i.e. held with an objective of holding the assets to collect contractual cash flows and the 
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. 
Amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest rate (“EIR”) method by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortization is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, gain 
or loss, if any, is recognised to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

b.  Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income  
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI, if it is held under the hold to collect and sell business 
model i.e. held with an objective to collect contractual cash flows and selling such financial asset 
and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognized in the 
OCI, except for interest income which recognized using EIR method. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain 
or loss previously recognized in the OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

c.  Measured at fair value through profit or loss  
Investment in financial asset other than equity instrument, not measured at either amortised cost 
or FVOCI is measured at FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.   

 Derecognition 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition 

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs for 
all financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss.  

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts and derivative instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at using EIR method. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all 
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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a. Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Loans & Borrowings): 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit & loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.  

b. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss  
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not 
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and loss. 

 
iii) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

iv) Income/Loss recognition 

Interest income: 

Interest income is accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable.  

 
Dividends:  

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive it is established. 

Borrowing costs:  

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the Statement of Profit and loss in the period in which 
they are incurred. 

d.  Impairment of non financial assets   

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-
financial asset or a group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
Company estimates the amount of impairment loss. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the 
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is considered as a cash 
generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual 
asset/cash generating unit is made. 

  
An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and 
recoverable amount. Losses are recognized in profit or loss. When the Company considers that there 
are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount 
of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is 
reversed through profit or loss. 

e.  Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (net of CENVAT where applicable) and the net realizable 
value. Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
In respect of raw materials, cost is determined on specific identification method, while cost of stores 
and spares is determined on First-in First-out basis. 
Finished goods include all direct costs and apportionment of production overheads. 
Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of 
completion and selling expenses. 
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However after closure of manufacturing activity there are no records required to be maintained as 
there were no activity, accordingly there is no question of any discrepancies to be reported. 

f). Taxation 

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of 
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the comprehensive income 
or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity 

 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at 
the Balance sheet date 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of 
taxable profit.  

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified period. The 
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will 
pay normal income-tax during the specified period. However the Company is not under the MAT 
provision as per previous BIFR status and it is exempted from the MAT provision, which will be 
continued status under IBC 2016. 

g).  Employees Benefits 

          The company provides following post-employment plans: 

(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity and 
(b) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund & ESIC  
The matter related to employment dues is pending before the Hon’ble Gujarat High Court hence there 
is no provision for any such liabilities except reported in contingent liabilities.  

h).  Provisions and contingencies  

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future 
outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present 
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

i).   Earning per share 

Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit after tax available to equity shareholders to the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.  

 
The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of 
potential dilutive equity shares unless impact is anti-dilutive. 

 

j).    Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalents include cash and Cheque in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with 
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash & which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Where original maturity is three 
months or less. 
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k).  Cash flow statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method where by the profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effect of the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future operating 
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are 
segregated. 

l).  Use of estimates and judgements  

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously 
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions 
and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable 
under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in 
the period in which the results are known/materialized. 

 
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting 
date 

The above policies were followed up to 31
st
 March, 2020. Subsequently there were no activities 

carried, hence there is no specific requirement for adherence of accounting policies. However, there is 
no specific information relating to any change of policies due to loss of key managerial personnel in 
accounts as well as finance department.  

Critical estimates and judgment in applying accounting policies  

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Information about estimates and judgments made in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements 
are as follows: 

i)  Accounting policy on impairment of assets 

In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction 
in profits such as reduction in CPC prices and increase in RPC prices, the Company’s business plans 
and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets 
of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the 
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. 

ii)  Provisions and contingencies  

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. 

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under 
the contract. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the future 
outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present 
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

iii)  Accounting policy on taxation 

In preparing financial statements, the Company recognizes income taxes of the jurisdiction in which it 
operates. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of 
whether additional taxes will be due. The uncertain tax positions are measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to taxation authorities when the Company determines that the probable outflow of 
economic resources will occur. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the 
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax 
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. 

iv)   Fair value measurement: 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date. 
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or to settle a liability in an ordinary 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or to settle a liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic 
best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 — other techniques for which all input which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 
value are observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 — Inputs which are not based on observable market data  
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4. Property, plant and equipment 
A. Reconciliation of carrying amount 

(` in lakhs) 
Description Gross Block Depreciation Net Block 

 As at 
01.04.19 
(Deeme
d cost)  

Addition/ 
Deduction 

As at 
31.03.20 

Upto 
31.03.19 

Provided 
during 
the year 

Dep on 
revaluat
ion 
assets  

As at 
31.03.2020 

As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.19 

Land  3851.52 - 3851.52 - - - - 3851.52 3851.52 
Roads 33.48 - 33.48 31.81 - - 31.81 1.67 1.67 
Buildings 7043.75 - 7043.75 6691.56 - - 6691.56 352.19 352.19 
Plant & 
Machinery 

 40556.03 -  40556.03   38528.23 - - 38528.23 2027.80 2027.80 

Tube Wells 10.21 - 10.21 9.70 - - 9.70 0.51 0.51 
Waterworks 
& Pipelines 

200.69 - 200.69 190.66 - - 190.66 10.03 10.03 

Railway 
siding  

33.31 - 33.31 31.65 - - 31.65 1.67 1.67 

Furniture, 
Fixture & 
Equipment 

686.06 - 686.06 651.75 - - 651.75 34.30 34.30 

Cars & 
Vehicles 

164.28 - 164.28 156.06 - - 156.06 8.21 8.21 

Total   52579.34 -   52579.34   46291.42 - - 46291.42 6287.91 6287.91 

Note - (i) The Company has applied the rate of depreciation on the basis of residual value of above fixed assets as contemplated in 
Schedule II of Companies Act' 2013, as the entire fixed register have been updated with physical verification. As all the plants are very old, 
the useful life of assets are completed as per the years mentioned in the Schedule II of the Companies Act' 2013. Consequently, the net 
block of assets is consisting of residue value to the extent of 5% of cost and  revaluation portion. 

  
B. Security  
Refer Note No. 12 for details of assets mortgaged. 

(` in lakhs) 
5. Non-current financial assets - 
Investments 

As at 31
st

 March 2020 As at 31
st

 March 2019 

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total 
Investment in equity instruments at cost       

*(i) 275 Fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- 
each of the ICICI Bank Limited 

- - - - - - 

(ii) 333 Fully paid equity share of Rs. 10/- 
each of Hindustan Oil Exploration Co. Ltd. 

0.56 - 0.56 0.56 - 0.56 

*(iii) 10 Shares of Rs. 20/- each fully paid of 
the Surat Jilla Sahakari Kharid Vechan Sangh 
Limited 

- - - - - - 

(iv) 772753 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100/- 
each of Thai Baroda Industries Ltd. 

- 574.85 574.85 - 574.85 574.85 

(v) 245000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of 
Advaita Trading Pvt. Ltd.  

- 24.50 24.50 - 24.50 24.50 

Total 0.56 599.35 599.91 0.56 599.35 599.91 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments   0.56   0.56 
Market value of quoted investment   1.00   1.53 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment   599.35   599.35 

*Amount is nominal. 
 
Note - Comprehensive income/loss consisting of Equity Investments measured at Fair Value (Net of Tax) is not 
taken into account for FY 2019-20 as the amount is negligible and will be considered in next financial year. 

(` in lakhs) 
6. Other non-current assets As at 31

st
 March 

2020 
As at 31

st
 March 

2019 

Balance with government authorities (refer note no 1&2 below)   
- CENVAT & Service Tax credit receivable 28.02 28.02 
- Deposit against GST 96.49 94.91 

Advance recoverable in cash or kind (refer note no. 3 below) 220.22 229.12 
Total 344.73 352.05 
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NOTE-  
1. CENVAT & Service tax receivable of ` 28,02,445/- includes ` 25,00,000/- towards deposit against Order 
passed by CESTA and ` 3,02,445/-towards disputed matter of service tax & Capital goods CENVAT matter.  

 

2. GST recoverable includes credit balances of CETVAT, Service tax etc. transferred to GST Account as on 
01/07/2017 which remains unutilized on account of no operation activity.  

 

3. The advances recoverable in cash or kind includes advances for expenses, staff loan, prepaid expenses, 
security deposit etc. 
 

(` in lakhs) 

7. Inventories As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

(At lower of cost and net realizable value)   
Stores and spares  17.89 17.89 

NOTE- Stores & Spares represents residual stock which is non moving in nature, however is in good condition. 
 (` in lakhs) 

8. Current Financial assets – Cash & cash equivalents As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Cash on hand 0.20 0.33 
Balance with banks in current accounts 18.93 10.44 
Balance with banks in current accounts (inoperative accounts) 0.01 0.60 
Total 19.14 11.37 

NOTES - There are 3 in-operative current account of the Company and is under process of closure of the 
same. The balances are subject to confirmation. 

(` in lakhs) 

9. Other current assets As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Ad-hoc advance given to employee’s as per direction of 
Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat ( For Labour Payment)…Refer 
Note below 

1891.70 1904.70 

Total 1891.70 1904.70 

NOTES - Pursuant to order of the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat, dated 08.01.2016 the company has deposited 
` 20 crores. Out of the said deposit amount, ` 19.72 crores is for 1972 employees as agreed to be payable i.e. 
` 1 lakh per employee. The said amount will be adjusted at the time of final settlement and other incidental 
expenses.  
 
10. Equity share capital As at 31

st
 

March 2020 
As at 31

st
 

March, 2019 

` In lakhs ` In lakhs 

A. Authorized share capital   

13,00,00,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- each with voting rights (previous 
year 13,00,00,000 eq. share of Rs. 10/- each) 

13000.00 13000.00 

2,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference share of Rs. 10/- each (previous year 
2,00,00,000 redeemable preference share of Rs. 10/- each)  

2000.00 2000.00 

Total 15000.00 15000.00 

B. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up     

2,29,11,359 Equity share of Rs. 10/- each with voting rights (previous year 
2,29,11,359 equity share of Rs. 10/- each)  

2291.14 2291.14 

Total 2291.14 2291.14 

 
Footnote –  
(i) Reconciliation of equity share capital with voting rights outstanding at the beginning and at the end 
of the year: 

Particulars As at 31
st

 March 2020 As at 31
st

 March 2019 

Number of 

shares 

Amount in 

lakhs 

Number of 

shares 

Amount in 

lakhs 

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  22911359 2291.14 22911359 2291.14 
Movement during the year  - - - - 

Equity shares at the end of the year 22911359 2291.14 22911359 2291.14 
 
(ii) Terms & rights of shareholder: 
The company has one class of equity shares having face value of ` 10/- each. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. 
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(iii) Shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company: 

Name of shareholders As at 31
st

 March, 2020 As at 31
st

 March, 2019  

No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding 
Kanchenjunga 
Texturisers Pvt. Ltd. 

7401202 32.30% 7401202 32.30% 

Sejima Texyarn Pvt. Ltd. 4417500 19.28% 4417500 19.28% 
Ramsons Properties Pvt. 
Ltd. 

3598200 15.71% 3598200 15.71% 

Shivalik Golf & Forests 
Resorts Ltd 

2620000 11.44% 2620000 11.44% 

 
11. Other Equity* 
*Refer Statement of changes in equity 

(` in lakhs) 

12. Non current financial liabilities – Borrowings As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Secured –    

Loan from body corporates 5731.04 7371.23 
Unsecured –    
Loan from body corporates 13170.36 11270.51 
Loan from directors 138.75 40.42 
Total non current financial borrowings 19040.15 18682.16 

NOTE:  
a) As per the Modified Debt Restructuring Scheme (MDRS) the company had availed loans from Bhavani 
Syntex Limited, Ramsons Properties Pvt. Ltd. and Unipat Rayon Ltd. by the way of assignment of debt. These 
debts have become overdue, however the Company has not made interest provision for the said debt. The 
interest provision will be made at the time of final settlement. The debt was assigned by way of Deed of 
Assignment dated 28.05.2019. Refer Note No. 27. 
b) Unsecured loan from Corporate Body is also part of MDRS scheme. It has become overdue and Company 
has yet to make provision for interest. As the Company could not make the payment of unsecured loans as per 
stipulated time as mentioned in MDRS scheme, the unsecured loans has been regrouped under above long 
term unsecured loans from other current liabilities. For details refer note 29. 
 
Repayment schedule and nature of security - 
 
Particulars Nature of security Upto 1 year  1 – 2 years  3 years & more 

1) Secured loans Fixed Assets includes moveable & 

immovable properties 

955.17 1910.35 2865.52 

2) Unsecured loans - 2195.06 4390.12 6585.18 

( ` in lakhs) 

13. Current Financial liabilities – Borrowings As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Secured -    

Loan from Body Corporates 1146.21 1474.25 
Unsecured -    
Inter-corporate deposit 2634.07 2254.10 
Deposit – refer note below 1.95 1.95 
Loan from directors 27.75 8.08 
Total current financial borrowings 3809.98 3738.38 
Note –  
Fixed Deposits of ` 1,95,000/- are yet to be paid as the matter is disputed in various courts. 

( ` in lakhs) 

14. Current Financial liabilities – Trade Payables As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

As at 31
st

 
March 2019 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 
below) 

- - 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

384.49 387.94 

Total 384.49 387.94 
NOTES - There are no creditors identified as Small, Micro & Medium Enterprise as defined as per MSME' Act, 
2006. 

( ` in lakhs) 

15. Current Financial liabilities – Others As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Liabilities related to Staff, PF dues , ESIC dues etc. 699.27 829.40 
Total 699.27 829.40 
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( ` in lakhs) 

16. Other current liabilities As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Statutory Liabilities 4867.99 6907.12 
Other liabilities  300.76 319.83 
Total 5168.76 7226.95 

NOTE – Statutory liability includes liability to central and state government. 
( ` in lakhs) 

17. Current liabilities - Provisions As at 31
st

 March 
2020 

As at 31
st

 March 
2019 

Provision for gratuity  2652.33 2707.43 
Total 2652.33 2707.43 

NOTE – Refer note 25(i) forming part of the financial statements. 
( ` in lakhs) 

18. Other income  As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

As at 31
st

 
March 2019 

Interest income from Income Tax Refunds  10.56 6.11 
*Dividend income 0.00 0.00 
Total 10.56 6.11 

*Amount is negligible 
( ` in lakhs) 

19. Finance cost  As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

As at 31
st

 
March 2019 

Interest expense on:   

- Borrowings - - 
- Others 38.65 30.00 

Total interest expense   
Other borrowing cost - Bank Charges 0.05 0.03 
Total 38.70 30.03 

( ` in lakhs) 

20. Other expense  As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

As at 31
st

 
March 2019 

AGM expenses 5.64 5.64 
Computer expenses 0.10 0.22 
GEB settlement expenses 29.30 14.42 
Legal expenses 0.10 - 
Legal and professional charges 15.04 11.24 
Office expenses 2.03 1.87 
Other expenses 23.32 8.25 
Rates & taxes 72.67 74.74 
Advertisement expenses 0.78 0.84 
Payment to Auditors (refer Note (i) below) 4.00 4.00 
Prior period items (net)  (Refer Note (ii) below) 49.48 (0.28) 
Total 202.46 120.94 

NOTE:   

Particulars 
 

As at 31
st

 
March 2020 

As at 31
st

 
March 2019 

`̀̀̀ `̀̀̀ 

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises (net of GST in current year and 
inclusive of service tax in previous year): 
- Statutory audit fees 

- Out of pocket expenses 

 
 

4.00 
- 

 
 

4.00 
- 

(ii) Details of Prior period items (net) 

Prior period expenses (Sundry Balances Written off) 

Prior period income (Liabilities no longer payable) 

 
49.48 

- 

 
(0.28) 

- 

 
            21. Earning per share 

( ` in lakhs) 

  Particulars For the year ended 
31

st
  March, 2020 

For the year ended          
31

st
  March, 2019 

  `̀̀̀ `̀̀̀ 

1 Earnings per share   
1.a Basic & Diluted   
  Net profit / (loss) for the year 1804.72 (586.24) 
  Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon - - 
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  Net profit / (loss) for the year from attributable to the 
equity shareholders 

1804.72 (586.24) 

  Weighted average number of equity shares 22911359 22911359 
  Par value per share 10 10 
  Earnings per share from continuing operations - Basic 7.88 (2.56) 

    

1.b Basic & Diluted (Excluding Extraordinary items)   

  Net profit / (loss) for the year 
Add /( Less): Extraordinary items (net of tax) relating to 
continuing operations 

1804.72 
2057.65 

(586.24) 
- 

  Less: Preference dividend and tax thereon - - 

  Net profit / (loss) for the year from attributable to the 
equity shareholders 

(252.93) (586.24) 

  Weighted average number of equity shares 22911359 22911359 

  Par value per share 10 10 

  Earnings per share from continuing operations excluding 
extraordinary items - Basic 

(1.10) (2.56) 

 
22. Contingent Liabilities (Not acknowledge as debt) -  

 (i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: 
 

Payment of Excise Duty disputed by the Company in respect of: Input & Capital Goods Matters –            
` 44,24,28,525/- (Previous Year ` 44,73,52,157/-).   

 
(ii) Contingent Liabilities not provided for:                
  

(a) The Company has to pay interest on the outstanding Customs Duty amount at the time of clearance 
of   goods – Amount not ascertained. However company have made the application for extend the 
period of private warehouse and Re-Export of Plant and machinery as per departmental guidelines 
and waiver of interest by way of Re-Export and it is also mentioned in the circulated MDRS dated 
13

th
 October 2015. Further the custom Authority had issued the letter on 19/12/2018 that stage of 

extend period was already over and company had challenged on 15/02/2019 before CESTA, 
Ahmedabad for relief and permission of Re-export and matter is pending at CESTA, Ahmedabad.        

 
(b) Bank Guarantees to Custom ` 21,67,562 (Previous year ` 21,67,562)   
  
(c) State Government Liabilities                                                                                                      (`) 
 

                                   
Sr. no 

 
Particulars 

 
As at 31/3/2020 

 
As at 31/3/2019 

1 Interest on Electricity duty 6,23,09,883 6,23,09,883 
2 Interest on Surat canal division 3,87,57,410 3,87,57,410 
3 *Interest on Vat\ Sales tax - 3,14,10,961 
4 Interest on Maharashtra sales tax 25,64,034 25,64,034 
 Total 10,36,31,327 13,50,42,288 

 
Regarding interest on Electricity duty, Surat canal division, commercial tax dept., company had 
requested before BIFR for waiver of interest, fine and penalty on duty for default period and company 
had also submitted an application to GOG for waiver of interest etc. on 11/01/2011 as per GR dated 
15/07/2010 in the terms of relief and concessions to sick company and. the matter is in process. 
Further GOG had given the consent before BIFR for relief and concessions to sick company as per 
their GR. 

* The company had applied and availed the benefits of the Vera Samadhan Yojna, 2019 scheme and 
as a result the interest and penalty on Vat/Sales tax have been waived by the government. 

(d) Central Government Liabilities                                                                                                   (`) 
                                                                    
Sr. no 

Particulars As at 31/3/2020 As at 31/3/2019 

1 *Interest on Excise Duty  - 4,41,33,200 
2 Damages on Provident Fund      7,99,78,890 7,99,78,890 
3 Damages on Employee State Insurance 3,67,38,964 3,67,38,964 
 Total 11,67,17,854 16,08,51,054 

 
Regarding interest on Excise duty, company had requested to BIFR for waiver of interest, fine and 
penalty on duty for default period and it is also mentioned in circulated MDRS dated 13

th
 October 

2015,  
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* The company had applied and availed the benefits of the Sabka Vishwas Scheme, 2019 and as a 
result the interest and penalty on excise duty have been waived by the government. 

Regarding interest and damages on Provident Fund & Employee State Insurance, company had 
requested to BIFR for waiver of damages and grant the installment facility for interest amount which 
is also mentioned in circulated MDRS dated 13

th
 October 2015, for which department had given 

written consent on 23
rd

 December, 2015 for waiver of damages subject to recommendation of 
BIFR/AAIFR and installment facility as per policy guidelines adopted by EPFO & ESIC respectively. 

23. Various cases filed against the company 

(i) The company entered into a wage settlement agreement with its employees on 27th October’ 2003 
under section 2(p) read with Rule 62 under the provisions of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. Under 
this agreement the Company has settled all past claims relating to wages, salaries, claims with regard 
to perquisite and any other amounts due to employees prior to December 2003 in full and final 
satisfaction. The payments under this settlement are spread over a period of 5 years from the 
recommencement of the operations. The agreement specifies the past liabilities relating to unpaid 
salary, provident fund E.S.I.C., Gratuities etc. Owing to financial crisis Company had made partial 
payment. Unfortunately, due to adverse financial position of the company, operations had discontinued 
since 2008. Thereafter union has filed the litigation with various claims against the company with 
Gujarat High Court. The HC, Gujarat has directed to resolve the dispute by appointing the arbitrator with 
their permission. The arbitration award was given as impugned award by the Arbitrator. Under provision 
of Section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, the said award Company is challenged in District 
Court, Surat. Thereafter the Hon’ble High Court of Gujarat has given the controversial Judgment during 
the month of May 2015 and company has filed Letter Patents Appeal (LPA) challenging the above said 
judgment at High Court of Gujarat. LPA was admitted at High Court of Gujarat, hence Labour Union has 
approached to Supreme Court of India for settlement of issues. Supreme Court of India has given 
directives to the High Court of Gujarat to settle the dispute. The matter is pending at High Court of 
Gujarat.  

 
Simultaneously, the Company has referred the said matter with Hon’ble BIFR for making necessary 
modification in Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (MDRS).The said scheme was circulated on 13th 
October’ 2015. And hearing was fixed on 31st December 2015, thereafter due to non availability of 
bench member hearing was re schedule and started hearing on 29th April 2016, 06th June 2016 and 
30th June 2016. After the last hearing, company have received the SCN dated 14th July 2016, Further 
company have approach before AAIFR and application was made against SCN before AAIFR and 
hearing was fixed on 29th September 2016,and AAIFR directed to issue stay order and next hearing 
was fixed on 30th October 2016, and due to non availability of bench member hearing could not held 
and next hearing was fixed on 15th December 2016.     

In pursuant to Government Notification S.O. No 3568(E) dated 25.11.2016 and S.O. 3569(E) dated 
25.11.2016, BIFR has been wound up w.e.f. 01.12.2016 and all the pending cases would be transferred 
to National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on making an application within the time prescribed under 
section 4(b) of Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003. No such application 
was made by the company. Further in pursuant to Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (Removal of 
Difficulties) Order, 2017 vide notification dated 24/05/2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
relating to amendment to the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Repeal Act, 2003, 
provided  that any scheme sanctioned under sub-section (4) or any scheme under implementation 
under sub-section (12) of section 18 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 
shall be deemed to be an approved resolution plan under sub-section (1) of section 31 of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and the same shall be dealt with, in accordance with the provisions of Part 
II of the said Code. Company had written a letter to the Office of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of 
India (IBBI) on 31.10.2017 and had also written on portal of IBBI on 28.10.2017 seeking clarification of 
implementation of the said order. Further IBBI had replied vide letter dated 28/9/2018 and the matter of 
the company was referred to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), than company had started various 
correspondence with MCA and final outcome was given by them on 16/01/2020 against Reply of 
company’s letter dated 08/01/2020 and they said that “Ministry pertaining to removing difficulties 
regarding review or monitoring of schemes sanctioned under SICA and approach Hon. High Court for 
appropriate relief by way writ petition referring the judgement dated 25/10/2018 of Hon. Supreme court 
of India in the matter of Spartek Ceramics India Limited.” Company has neither booked the same as a 
liability nor has disclosed as contingent liability and no action taken by company in this matter. 

 
(ii)  Various cases of labour matters, excise matters, gratuity matters and criminal cases under section 138 

of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1938 have been filed against the Company during the normal course 
of business, which are insignificant to affect the existence of the Company in the opinion of the 
management.  

 
(iii) M/s Advance Engineering Services, operational creditor of the company has filed an application with the 

National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench under section 9 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.  
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24.  The balances of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Bank balances and Loans & Advances are subject to 

confirmation and are shown as appearing in the Account. 

25.  Employee benefit –  

 

(i) The liability for retiring/resigned employee’s gratuities payable in accordance with the payment of 
Gratuities Act and Company’s rule are determined and overdue for the employees up to 31st March, 
2020 is ` 26,52,33,005/-. (PY ` 27,07,43,241/-).    

 
    (ii)  As per the past policy, the company’s liability under Provident Fund Act (Funded) is determined on the 

basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of the financial year. But the cancellation of the Trust as per 

order of Ministry of Labour, Government of Gujarat, the company has paid the amount of PF 

contribution along with interest of trust, hence no requirement of further funding against the PF 

contribution. The Company has received no dues certificate from Provident fund authorities relating to 

principal payment of Provident fund. Further company had deposited every month interest on PF 

contribution under 7Q. The total amount was ` 5,09,81,677/- and company had deposited till 

31/03/2020 amount of ` 4,18,72,865/-  and balance amount payable of ` 91,08,812/-. Owing to the 

dispute with the labour since past many years, the liability may arise in event of final verdict issued in 

favour of labour. The Provident fund authorities have issued letter to BIFR for waiver of interest and 

damages for delayed in depositing & payment of P.F. contribution. The necessary provision has been 

made in the books of accounts for interest amount.   

26.  Income tax –  

a. In view of the loss, the Company has not made any provision of Income Tax. 
b. Company was declared as sick and scheme sanctioned by BIFR on 22/5/2006 and further submitted 

the MDRS and same was circulated on 13/10/2015 by BIFR. Company had requested to allow the 
accumulated business losses and depreciation since the losses were incurred in company. During the 
hearing held on 29/4/2016, 06/06/2016 and 30/06/2016 before BIFR, company had asked to allow the 
same. Then after company had requested to Income Tax Department to consider this issue and 
matter is pending with them. 

c. In view of substantial accumulated losses carried forward and unabsorbed depreciation under the 
Income Tax Act, the Ind AS (12) relating to “Accounting for Taxes on Income” cannot be implemented 
on Balance Sheet date as sufficient future taxable income is not yet achieved. 

 

27. Borrowings -  
(a)  As per the Modified Debt Restructuring Scheme (MDRS) the company had availed loans from Bhavani 

Syntex Limited, Ramsons Properties Pvt. Ltd. and Unipat Rayon Ltd. by the way of assignment of debt. 
These debts have become overdue, however the Company has not made interest provision for the said 
debt. The interest provision will be made at the time of final settlement. The debt was assigned by way of 
Deed of Assignment dated 28.05.2019. Refer Note No. 12(a) of the financial results.  

 
(b) During the year, the charges created in favour of IDBI & IFCI was satisfied and necessary e-forms were 

filed with the MCA.  
 

28.  Segment reporting –  

 
As the entire operational activities are standstill since August 2008, there are no material consumption, no 
inflow and outflow of foreign exchange during the year. Accordingly there are no other 
business/geographical segments to be reported under Ind AS 108.   

 
29. Capital management – 

 

Under the Modified Draft Restructuring Scheme (MDRS), the Company has availed the loan with 
immediate object to revive the Company. The loans mentioned under long term borrowings (refer Note 
12) as Secured loans & unsecured loans and amount reported under (Note 13) as short term borrowings 
are aggregating to ` 228,48,18,175/-. Owing to the pending legal cases, the Company could not liquidate 
the asset and repay the mentioned loan amount as per stipulation, which has become over due. In 
compliance of the terms & condition mentioned in the agreement, the Company will create the security of 
overdue unsecured loans along with the secured loans, which shall rank pari passu. The interest amount 
payable for aforesaid loans is estimated to be ` 491,89,48,116/-, which is not provided in the books of 
accounts. As per order of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in petition(s) for Special Leave of Appeal (C) 
No(s). 27210-27215/2015 dated 28.09.2015 it is clearly stated that that the dues of the Petitioners-
workmen shall be cleared before any other secured creditors or other claimants.      

 

30. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the 

current year's classification / disclosure.  
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31. There are no amounts due and payable to Investors Education and Provident Fund as on the date of 

Balance sheet. 

 

32. The entire operational activities of the company are standstill since August 2008, due to labour & other 

regulatory issues. Till date there are no plants or units in operation. As a result there is no question of 

turnover or profitability or impact of COVID-19 on operation of units of the company except uncertainty 

relating to fair market value of investment, which may decline in future.  Management does not expect any 

adverse impact on its future cash flows and shall be able to continue as a going concern. The Company 

will continue to monitor future economic conditions for any significant change. The internal financial control 

over financial reporting, disclosure controls and risk assessment and minimization procedures are 

maintained, continued and followed and there is no change in the same. 

 

33. The exceptional item of ` 20,57,64,926/- comprises of ` 6,87,27,273/- towards waiver of interest and 

penalty of excise duty granted under Sabka Vishwas Scheme, 2019 and ` 13,70,37,653/- towards waiver 

of interest and penalty of Gujarat Sales Tax granted under Vera Samadhan Yojana 2019. Refer to 

Annexed Auditors point (iv) of Emphasis of Matter. 

 

34.  Financial Instruments – Fair value and Risk Management  

(i) Fair value hierarchy  

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument 

could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation 

sale. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, 
other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial institutions approximate their 
carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments. 
 

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on 
parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this 
evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, 
fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their carrying amounts. 

 

The Financial Instruments are categorised in three level based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value 

measurements as described below:- 

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. (at cost) 

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 

observable, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data 

 

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows: 

Financial assets              ` 
  As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019 

Particulars Carrying 
Amount 

Level of Input Used In Carrying 
Amount 

Level of Input Used In 

  Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 

Financial Assets             

At Amortised 
Cost 

         

Trade 
receivables  

- - -               -  
- 

               -    

Cash and cash 
equivalents  

19,13,789 - -                      
11,37,166 

 
- 

               -    

At FVTPL         
Trade receivables -                             -        -               -     -      

           
-                 

Cash and cash 
equivalents  

                          
-    

 
- 

               
-    

                          
-    

 
- 

-                

Other Bank 
Balance 

                          
-    

 
- 

               
-    

                          
-    

 
- 

-    

At FVTOCI         

Investment -  599,90,953 -                 -                           599,90,953  -    

Trade receivables   
-    

 
- 

               
-    

                          
-    

               -                   -    
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Cash and cash 
equivalents  

 
-    

 
- 

               
-    

                          
-    

               -                   -    

Other Bank 
Balance 

 
-    

 
- 

               
-    

                          
-    

               -                   -    

Financial 
Liabilities 

         

Borrowings 38,09,98,029    - -                 37,38,38,127                 -                   -    
Trade payables  3,84,48,872 - - 3,87,94,091 - - 

Other financial 
liabilities  

6,99,27,298                
  -    

               
-    

8,29,39,685 - - 

(ii) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company Financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business 
strategies. The company risk management policy is set by the Managing Board. 

 
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a 
change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result 
of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes 
that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial 
instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables and loans and 
borrowings. 

 
(a) Market Risk- Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. In order to optimize the company's position with regards to 
interest income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a 
comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and 
floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio. 

 
(b) Exposure to interest rate risk                                                                                                                                             

Particulars As at 31st March'20 As at 31st March'19 

Borrowings bearing variable rate of interest ` 2,28,48,18,175/- ` 2,24,20,53,762/- 
Borrowings bearing Fixed rate of interest - - 

 
(c) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as 
agreed. To manage this, the company periodically assess financial reliability of customer, taking into 
account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of 
accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. 
 
The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each reporting period. To assess 
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company compares the risk of default occurring on 
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers 
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as: 
 
i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, 
ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty, 
iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the 

counterparty's ability to meet its obligations,  
iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty, 
v) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of the 

third-party guarantees or credit enhancements. 
 
Ageing of Account receivables                                                                                                                                                

Particulars As at 31st March'20 As at 31st March'19 
0-6 months - - 
beyond 6 months - - 

Total - - 

  
(d) Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on 
time, or at a reasonable price. The company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as 
well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related such risk are overseen by 
senior management. Management monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts 
on the basis of expected cash flows.  

The company had access to following undrawn Borrowing facilities at end of reporting period: 
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                                                                                                                                                                  (`) 
Particulars As at 31st March'20 As at 31st March'19 

Variable Borrowing - Cash Credit expires within 1 
year 

- - 

(e) Maturity patterns of other Financial Liabilities (`) 

Particulars As at 31st March'20 As at 31st March'19 

Trade Payable   

Below 6 Months - - 

Beyond 6 Months 3,84,48,872/- 3,87,94,091/- 

  Total 3,84,48,872/- 3,87,94,091/- 

 
(f) Capital risk management  

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going 
concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

The Company Monitors Capital on the basis of the following debt equity ratio:-                                (`) 

Particulars As at 31st March'20 As at 31st March'19 

Net Debt 3,17,54,98,172/- 3,35,72,26,117/- 

Total Equity 22,91,13,590/- 22,91,13,590/- 

  Total 340,46,11,762/- 358,63,39,707/- 

 
35.  Related Party Disclosure: 

        (`) 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Designation 

a) Mr. Damodarbhai Patel Managing Director 
b) Mr. J. K. Jakhotia Chief Financial Officer 
c) Mr. Kunjal Desai Company Secretary 
Note:- Related party transaction with related parties during the year ended on 31.03.2020 
Remuneration to Key Management Personnel 2019-20 2018-19 

a) Mr. Kunjal Desai 6,00,000/- 400000/- 
b) Mr. J. K. Jakhotia 6,00,000/- 3333/- 

   
 
 
 
 
For Kansariwala & Chevli 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No. 123689W 
 
 
 
A.H. Chevli 
Partner 
Membership No. 038259 
UDIN-20038259AAAABJ2239 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
Damodarbhai Patel                           Bhavanjibhai Patel 
Managing Director                              Director 
DIN-00056513                                    DIN-01690183 
 
 
 
Kunjal Desai                                      J. K. Jakhotia 
Company Secretary                            Chief Financial Officer 
ACS-40809 
 
 
Place – Surat 
Date – 30

th
 June, 2020 
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THE BARODA RAYON CORPORATION LIMITED 
Registered Office: P.O. Baroda Rayon, Fatehnagar, Udhna, Dist. Surat-394220 

CIN: L99999GJ1958PLC000892, E-mail ID – brcsurat@gmail.com website-www.brcl.in  
Phone: (0261 – 2899555) 

 
ATTENDANCE SLIP 

 
(Please bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting Hall and hand it over to the entrance) 

 
60

th
 Annual General Meeting 

 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 60

th
 Annual General Meeting of the Company at Patidar 

Bhavan, Kadodara, Surat at 09:00 a.m. on Tuesday, September 29, 2020. 
 
Name of Shareholder                                    : 
 
Registered Address of the Shareholder    : 
 
Ledger Folio No./Cl ID /DP ID No.  : 
 
Number of shares held   : 
 
Name of Proxy/Representative, if any  : 
 
Signature of the Member/Proxy   : 
 
Signature of the Representative  : 
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Form No. MGT – 11 
 

PROXY FORM 
 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
Name of the Member(s):  
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Registered Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
E-mail Id:………………………………………………………………………………………………………………... 
 
Folio No./Client Id:…………………………………………DP ID:…………………………………………………... 
 
I/We, being the member(s) holding ………………… shares of the above named company, hereby appoint 
 
1.Name……………………………………………………Address:.………………………………………………… 
       
…………………………………………………….............Signature:……………………………………………...... 

 

2. Name…………………………………………………...Address:.……………………………………………….... 
        
………………………………………………………..........Signature:……………………………………………...... 

 

3. Name……………………………………………………Address:.……………………………………………….... 
     
…...………………………………………………………...Signature:………………………………………………... 

 

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 60th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at Patidar Bhavan, Kadodara, Surat 

at 09:00 a.m. and at my adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution 

No. 

Resolution Type of 

Resolution 

Optional* 

For Against 

1 Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 

31, 2020 and reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon 

Ordinary 
 

  

2 Appointment of a Director in place of Mrs. Vidhya Bhavani, who retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

Ordinary   

3 To approve increase in the remuneration of Mr. Damodarbhai Patel (DIN-

00056513), Managing Director of the company. 

Special   

 

Signed this ………………. Day of …………….. 2020. 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s):________________ Signature of Shareholder:________________ 
 
Note: 
This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
* It is optional to put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave 
the ‘For’ of ‘Against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the 
manner as he/she thinks appropriate.                         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Of Re. 1/- 
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Book Post 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If undelivered Please return to: 
THE BARODA RAYON CORPORATION LIMITED 
P.O. Baroda Rayon, Fatehnagar, Udhna, Dist. Surat - 394220 


